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55%      CARDBIZ HOLDING SDN. BHD.

100%    MY E.G. ALTERNATIVE PAYMENT SERVICES SDN. BHD.

100%    MY E.G. CREDIT SDN. BHD. (Formerly known as MY E.G. Payment Services Sdn. Bhd.)

60%      PICASSO MEDIA SDN. BHD.

60%      HURR TV SDN. BHD.   

100%    IPIDATO DOT COM SDN. BHD. 

100%    

100%    CardBiz Payment Services Sdn. Bhd.

100%    CardBiz Technologies Sdn. Bhd.

100%    Buy Now Asia Sdn. Bhd.  

100%    CardBiz eServices Sdn. Bhd.
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Financial Highlights
cont’d

Summarized Group Income Statements
Year Ended 30 June (RM’000) 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Revenue 58,833 66,924 76,484 109,872 141,518 281,728
EBITDA (1) 30,727 37,168 46,390 64,833 84,554 164,405

22,960 27,610 34,391 50,710 68,213 143,226
22,130 27,344 34,849 50,113 68,047 142,519
22,130 27,344 34,849 50,113 74,747 142,519

Summarized Group Balance Sheets
As At 30 June (RM’000) 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Total Non-Current Assets 92,287 98,157 102,665 101,328 140,118 286,541
Total Current Assets 29,789 51,812 79,446 134,708 307,679 437,862

TOTAL ASSETS 122,076 149,969 182,111 236,036 447,797 724,403

60,105 60,105 60,105  60,105  120,210  240,420 
 -    -    -    -    -    -   

(158)  (2,206)  (7,766) (10,237) (6,783) (2)
 -    -    -    -   43,709 6,700 

40,019 60,769 87,300  126,789  116,777 153,179
99,966 118,668 139,639 176,657 273,913 400,297

 -    -   3 2 (20) (161)

Total Equity 99,966 118,668 139,642 176,659 273,893 400,136
 7,474  8,272  8,833  8,971  7,514  84,681 

 14,636  23,029  33,636  50,406  166,390 239,586

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 122,076 149,969 182,111 236,036 447,797 724,403

Financial Analysis 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

23.4% 13.8% 14.3% 43.7% 28.8% 99.1%
9.3% 20.3% 24.6% 47.5% 34.5% 110.0%
6.0% 23.6% 27.4% 43.8% 35.8% 109.4%

52.2% 55.5% 60.7% 59.0% 59.7% 58.4%
39.0% 41.3% 45.0% 46.2% 48.2% 50.8%
37.6% 40.9% 45.6% 45.6% 48.1% 50.6%

24.0% 25.0% 27.0% 31.7% 30.2% 42.3%
20.3% 20.1% 21.0% 24.0% 19.9% 24.3%

3.2* 4.0* 4.9* 6.6* 10.5* 15.6
 0.9*  1.1*  1.5*  2.1*  2.8*  5.9 

        
(1)
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Share Price Performance
for the Period 1 July 2015 to 30 September 2016

Share Price Performance

RM2.28 



Chairman’s
Statement 

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

The Malaysian economy has been quite 
resilient over the past year. The 
ever-increasing high speed and mobile 

My E.G. Services Berhad (“MYEG” or 

implemented sound corporate strategies 

underscores MYEG’s commitment to 

building in the digital age.

am pleased to present to you our Annual 

.

te 
he
le 

or 

es 

to 
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Chairman’s Statement
cont’d

OPERATING LANDSCAPE 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 

DIVIDEND 

CORPORATE DEVELOPMENTS 

Bonus Issue



Annual Report 2016 9

Chairman’s Statement
cont’d

New Subsidiaries 

OUTLOOK 
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Chairman’s Statement
cont’d

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

DATO’ DR. NORRAESAH BINTI HAJI MOHAMAD
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL RESULTS 
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Management Discussion and Analysis
cont’d

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS 

MOVING FORWARD



Annual Report 2016 13

Sustainability Statement

Environment Sustainability 

Social sustainability in the workplace
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Sustainability Statement
cont’d

Social sustainability in our community 

Underprivileged

Development

Developing Business Skills

Governance 
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Events Highlight

SPONSORSHIP OF EVENTS

Futsal Kindness Cup 2016

Sponsorship of Food Packs for the underprivileged 
community at Project Perumahan Rakyat Miskin Tegar 
(“PPRT”) Lembah Subang
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Events Highlight
cont’d

AIDS AND DONATIONS
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Events Highlight
cont’d

Ekspo Usahawan Bumiputera Pulau Pinang (“PenBEX”) 
kali ke-15 tahun 2016

Bursa Bull Charge 2016 Sponsor
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Events Highlight
cont’d

AWARDS AND RECOGNITIONS

Malaysia Social Media Week 2016

Forbes Asia’s 200 Best Under A Billion 2016



DATO’ DR NORRAESAH
BINTI HAJI MOHAMAD
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Directors’ 



WONG THEAN SOON
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Wong Thean Soon

 

Directors’ 
cont’d



TAN SRI DATO’ DR MUHAMMAD RAIS
BIN ABDUL KARIM

Annual Report 2016 21

Tan Sri Dato’ Dr Muhammad Rais Bin Abdul Karim

 
 

Directors’ 
cont’d



DATO’ RAJA HAJI MUNIR SHAH 
BIN RAJA MUSTAPHA
DA
BI
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Directors’ 
cont’d

Dato’ Raja Haji Munir Shah Bin Raja Mustapha

 

.



NG FOOK AI, VICTOR
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Directors’ 
cont’d

Ng Fook Ai

.



DATUK MOHD JIMMY WONG 
BIN ABDULLAH
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Directors’ 
cont’d

Datuk Mohd Jimmy Wong Bin Abdullah



DATO’ SHAMSUL ANUAR
BIN HAJI NASARAH

Independent Non-Executive Director

DATUK MOHD JIMMY WONG 
BIN ABDULLAH
Independent Non-Executive Director
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Directors’ Profile
cont’d

Dato’ Shamsul Anuar Bin Haji Nasarah, a Malaysian 
male aged 49, was appointed to the Board on 1 
November 2013.

He graduated with an Executive Diploma in Counseling 
from University of Malaya (“UM”) and obtained his 
Master in Public Administration at the College of Law, 
Government and International Studies of University 
Utara Malaysia (“UUM”).

He has very extensive experience in youth movement. 
Since his young age, he had joined and led several 
youth movements in Malaysia as well as internationally. 
He had held various positions and had risen among 
the ranks to be the Deputy President of the Perak 
State Youth Council (2004 – 2005) and President of the 
Malaysian Youth Council (2006 – 2009). Internationally, 
he was involved and held several positions in the ASEAN 
Youth Organisation (“CAYC”), Asian Youth Association 
(“AYC”) and the World Assembly of Youth (“WAY”). He 
was also involved in numerous policies formulation of 
the Ministry of Youth and Sports, namely the National 
Youth Policy, the National Master Plan for Youth 
Development and the National Youth Development Act, 
2006.

He was formerly the Chairman of the Youth 
Development and Research Institute of Malaysia 
(IPPBN) of the Ministry of Youth and Sports Malaysia 
(2007 – 2009) and a former board member of the 
Federal Agricultural Marketing Authority (“FAMA”) of 
the Ministry of Agriculture and Agro-Based Industry 
Malaysia (2009 – 2013). He is currently the Chairman 
of the National Higher Education Fund Corporation 
(“PTPTN”) and a Member of Parliament for the 
constituency of Lenggong, Perak. He does not hold any 
directorship in any other public or public listed company.

He does not have any family relationship with any other 
Directors and/or major shareholders of the Company or 
any conflict of interest with the Company nor does he 
has any convictions for offences within the past 5 years, 
except for traffic offences, if any.

He has attended four (4) Board Meetings held in the 
financial year ended 30 June 2016. He does not hold any 
shares in the Company as at 30 September 2016.
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Key Senior

Jason Chan Ling Khee Chong Chien Ming
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Nor Adnan Bin Zainal Abidin

2013.

 

Mohd Rushdan Khairul Anuar

Key Senior
cont’d
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Ngeow Kian Moon

Key Senior
cont’d
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Corporate Governance Statement

ESTABLISH CLEAR ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

).
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Corporate Governance Statement
cont’d

ESTABLISH CLEAR ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES  
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ESTABLISH CLEAR ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Audit and Risk Management 

RESPONSIBILITIES RESPONSIBILITIES RESPONSIBILITIES

Code of Conduct and Whistle-Blowing Policy

Sustainability

Corporate Governance Statement
cont’d
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Corporate Governance Statement
cont’d

ESTABLISH CLEAR ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES  

Sustainability  

Company Secretaries
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STRENGTHEN COMPOSITION

Corporate Governance Statement
cont’d
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STRENGTHEN COMPOSITION  

  

Board Membership Criteria

Corporate Governance Statement
cont’d
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STRENGTHEN COMPOSITION  

Fees Salaries
Other

Emoluments In Kind Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

488 - - - 488

228 - - - 228

716 - - - 716

Corporate Governance Statement
cont’d
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STRENGTHEN COMPOSITION  

 

Directors Directors Total

- - -

RM50,001 - RM100,000 - 3 3

RM100,001 - RM150,000 1 - 1

RM150,001 - RM200,000 2 - 2

REINFORCE INDEPENDENCE

Annual Assessment of Independence

Tenure of Independent Directors

Corporate Governance Statement
cont’d
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REINFORCE INDEPENDENCE  

Tenure of Independent Directors  

Chairman and Managing Director

FOSTER COMMITMENT

Time Commitment

Corporate Governance Statement
cont’d
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FOSTER COMMITMENT  

Time Commitment  

NAME OF DIRECTORS

TOTAL 
MEETINGS 
ATTENDED %

100

100

100

100

100

100

80

Directors’ Training

UPHOLD INTEGRITY IN FINANCIAL REPORTING

Corporate Governance Statement
cont’d
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UPHOLD INTEGRITY IN FINANCIAL REPORTING  

  

Suitability and Independence of Internal and External Auditors

Corporate Governance Statement
cont’d
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DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

RECOGNISE AND MANAGE RISKS

ENSURE TIMELY AND HIGH QUALITY DISCLOSURE

Corporate Disclosure Policies and Procedures

Corporate Governance Statement
cont’d
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ENSURE TIMELY AND HIGH QUALITY DISCLOSURE  

STRENGTHEN RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN COMPANY AND SHAREHOLDERS

COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

Corporate Governance Statement
cont’d
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Audit and Risk Management

MEMBERSHIP

ARMC MEETINGS

ARMC Members 

COMPOSITION AND TERMS OF REFERENCE
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Audit and Risk Management
cont’d

COMPOSITION AND TERMS OF REFERENCE  

  

2. Chairman

3. Secretary
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Audit and Risk Management
cont’d

COMPOSITION AND TERMS OF REFERENCE  

5.  Rights
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COMPOSITION AND TERMS OF REFERENCE  

  

  

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

Audit and Risk Management
cont’d
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COMPOSITION AND TERMS OF REFERENCE  

  

  

SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES UNDERTAKEN BY THE ARMC

Audit and Risk Management
cont’d
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SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES UNDERTAKEN BY THE ARMC  

TRAINING AND EDUCATION

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

Audit and Risk Management
cont’d
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INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION  

RM42,000.

Audit and Risk Management
cont’d
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Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control

INTRODUCTION

BOARD’S RESPONSIBILITY

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION
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Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control
cont’d

INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION  

OTHER KEY ELEMENTS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS

ASSURANCE
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Statement on Risk Management and Internal Control
cont’d

CONCLUSION

REVIEW BY EXTERNAL AUDITORS
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1.  SHARE BUY-BACKS

Month of Buy-Back

No. of
shares 

bought-back

Lowest price 
paid for

each share
(RM)

Highest price 
paid for

each share
(RM)

Average price 
per share

(RM)

Total 

paid (including 

costs)
(RM)

 500,000  2.530  2.590  2.560  1,287,632.90 

 100,000  2.460  2.460  2.460  247,011.80 

 971,800  2.545  2.590  2.568  2,504,767.48 

 1,000  2.120  2.120  2.120  2,163.64 

Total  1,572,800  -  -  -  4,041,575.82 

 

 
Number of 

shares

Total cost
(including 

costs)
(RM)

Average
cost 

per share
(RM)

 2,759,800  6,782,853.24 2.46

 1,572,800  4,041,575.82 2.57

 (4,331,600)  (10,822,265.42) 2.50

 1,000  2,163.64 2.16

2. OPTIONS OR CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES

2016.
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3.  DEPOSITORY RECEIPT (“DR”) PROGRAMME

4.  SANCTIONS AND/OR PENALTIES

5.  STATUTORY AUDIT AND NON-STATUTORY AUDIT FEES

Company Group

RM44,000 RM165,000

RM5,000 RM5,000

6. MATERIAL CONTRACTS

7. VARIATION IN RESULTS

8.  PROFIT GUARANTEE

9.  CONTRACTS RELATING TO LOANS

10. UTILISATION OF PROCEEDS

cont’d
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Directors’ Report

The directors hereby submit their report and the audited financial statements of the Group and of the Company for 
the financial year ended 30 June 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is principally engaged in the businesses of development and implementation of the Electronic 
Government Services project and the provision of other related services for the Electronic Government Services 
project, as well as investment holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 5 to the financial 
statements. There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year.

RESULTS

The Group The Company 
RM’000 RM’000

Profit after taxation for the financial year 142,519 171,032

Attributable to:-
Owners of the Company 142,872 171,032
Non-controlling interests (353) -

142,679 171,032

DIVIDENDS

The dividends declared and paid by the Company during the financial year are as follows:

RM’000

In respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2015:-
Paid a final tax-exempt dividend of 1.40 sen per ordinary share on 4 February 2016 16,829
								      
In respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2016:-				 
				  
Paid a first interim single tier dividend of 0.50 sen per ordinary share on 24 May 2016 12,021
							     
At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a final dividend of 1.30 sen per ordinary share in respect of the current 
financial year will be proposed for approval by the shareholders. The financial statements for the current financial 
year do not reflect this proposed dividend. This dividend will be accounted for as an appropriation of retained profits 
in the period when it is approved by the shareholders.

 
RESERVES AND PROVISIONS 

There were no material transfers to or from reserves or provisions during the financial year other than those 
disclosed in the statements of changes in equity.
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Directors’ Report
cont’d

ISSUES OF SHARES AND DEBENTURES

During the financial year:-

(a)	 there were no changes in the authorised share capital of the Company;

(b)	 the Company had on 7 January 2016, increased its issued and paid-up share capital from RM120,210,200 to 
RM240,420,400 by way of bonus issue of 1,202,102,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.10 each credited as fully 
paid-up on the basis of 1 bonus share for every 1 existing ordinary share held. The new shares issued rank pari 
passu in all respects with the existing shares of the Company; and	

(c)	 there were no issues of debentures by the Company.

TREASURY SHARES

During the financial year, the Company purchased 1,573,000 of its issued ordinary shares from the open market at 
an average price of RM2.57 per share. The total consideration paid for the purchase was RM4,041,000 including 
transaction costs. The ordinary shares purchased are being held as treasury shares in accordance with Section 67A of 
the Companies Act 1965 and are presented as a deduction from equity.

During the financial year, the Company resold 4,332,000 of its treasury shares to the open market at price of RM3.79 
per share. The total consideration received for the resale was RM16,366,000 net of transaction costs.

As at 30 June 2016, the Company held as treasury shares a total of 1,000 of its 2,404,204,000 issued and fully paid-
up ordinary shares. The treasury shares are held at a carrying amount of RM2,000. Relevant details on the treasury 
shares are disclosed in Note 21 to the financial statements. 

OPTIONS GRANTED OVER UNISSUED SHARES 

During the financial year, no options were granted by the Company to any person to take up any unissued shares in 
the Company.

 
BAD AND DOUBTFUL DEBTS

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable steps 
to ascertain that action had been taken in relation to the writing off of bad debts and the making of allowance for 
impairment losses on receivables, and satisfied themselves that all known bad debts had been written off and that 
adequate allowance had been made for impairment losses on receivables.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances that would require the further writing 
off of bad debts, or the additional allowance for impairment losses on receivables in the financial statements of the 
Group and of the Company.

CURRENT ASSETS

Before the financial statements of the Group and of the Company were made out, the directors took reasonable 
steps to ascertain that any current assets other than debts, which were unlikely to be realised in the ordinary course 
of business, including their value as shown in the accounting records of the Group and of the Company, have been 
written down to an amount which they might be expected so to realise.

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which would render the values attributed 
to the current assets in the financial statements misleading.
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Directors’ Report
cont’d

VALUATION METHODS

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances which have arisen which render 
adherence to the existing methods of valuation of assets or liabilities of the Group and of the Company misleading or 
inappropriate.

CONTINGENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES 

The contingent liabilities are disclosed in Note 44 to the financial statements. At the date of this report, there does 
not exist:- 

(a)	 any charge on the assets of the Group and of the Company that has arisen since the end of the financial year 
which secures the liabilities of any other person; or

(b)	 any contingent liability of the Group and of the Company which has arisen since the end of the financial year.

No contingent or other liability of the Group and of the Company has become enforceable or is likely to become 
enforceable within the period of twelve months after the end of the financial year which, in the opinion of the 
directors, will or may substantially affect the ability of the Group and of the Company to meet their obligations when 
they fall due.

 
CHANGE OF CIRCUMSTANCES

At the date of this report, the directors are not aware of any circumstances not otherwise dealt with in this report 
or the financial statements of the Group and of the Company which would render any amount stated in the financial 
statements misleading.

ITEMS OF AN UNUSUAL NATURE 

The results of the operations of the Group and of the Company during the financial year were not, in the opinion of 
the directors, substantially affected by any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature.

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial year and the date of this report any item, 
transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the directors, to affect substantially the 
results of the operations of the Group and of the Company for the financial year.

DIRECTORS

The directors who served since the date of the last report are as follows:-

Dato’ Dr Norraesah Binti Haji Mohamad
Tan Sri Dato’ Dr Muhammad Rais Bin Abdul Karim
Wong Thean Soon
Dato’ Raja Haji Munir Shah Bin Raja Mustapha
Datuk Mohd Jimmy Wong Bin Abdullah 
Ng Fook Ai, Victor
Dato’ Shamsul Anuar Bin Haji Nasarah
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Directors’ Report
cont’d

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

According to the register of directors’ shareholdings, the interests of directors holding office at the end of the 
financial year in shares in the Company and its related corporations during the financial year are as follows:-

Number of Ordinary Shares of RM0.10 Each
At 1.7.2015 Bonus Issue Bought Sold At 30.6.2016

Direct Interests in the Company

Dato’ Dr Norraesah Binti Haji Mohamad 8,670,000 8,770,000 200,000 - 17,640,000
Tan Sri Dato’ Dr Muhammad Rais Bin 

Abdul Karim 4,006,000 4,006,000 - - 8,012,000
Wong Thean Soon 85,452,012 85,452,012 - - 170,904,024
Dato’ Raja Haji Munir Shah Bin Raja 

Mustapha 819,800 669,800 - (150,000) 1,339,600
Datuk Mohd Jimmy Wong Bin Abdullah 1,104,000 1,104,000 - - 2,208,000

Indirect Interests in the Company

Tan Sri Dato’ Dr Muhammad Rais Bin 
Abdul Karim(1) 2,440,000 2,440,000 - - 4,880,000

Wong Thean Soon(2) 396,815,996 396,815,996 - (24,027,100) 769,604,892
Dato’ Raja Haji Munir Shah Bin Raja 

Mustapha(3) 376,815,996 376,815,996 - (24,027,100) 729,604,892

(1) 	 Indirect interest through his wife’s and son’s shareholdings by virtue of Section 134(12)(c) of the Companies Act 1965 in 
Malaysia.

(2) 	 Indirect interests through his interests in Asia Internet Holdings Sdn. Bhd. (“AIH”) and Asia Internet E-Services Holdings Sdn. 
Bhd. (“AIEH”) and Radio Port Limited (“RPL”).

(3) 	 Indirect interests through his interests in Asia Internet Holdings Sdn. Bhd. (“AIH”), Asia Internet E-Services Holdings Sdn. Bhd. 
(“AIEH”). 

By virtue of their shareholdings in the Company, Wong Thean Soon and Dato’ Raja Haji Munir Shah Bin Raja 
Mustapha are deemed to have interests in shares in the Company and its related corporations, in accordance with 
Section 6A of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia.

The other directors holding office at the end of the financial year had no interest in shares in the Company or its 
related corporations during the financial year.
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Directors’ Report
cont’d

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS

Since the end of the previous financial year, no director has received or become entitled to receive any benefit (other 
than a benefit included in the aggregate amount of emoluments received or due and receivable by directors as shown 
in the financial statements, or the fixed salary of a full-time employee of the Company) by reason of a contract made 
by the Company or a related corporation with the director or with a firm of which the director is a member, or with 
a company in which the director has a substantial financial interest except for any benefits which may be deemed to 
arise from transactions entered into in the ordinary course of business with related parties as disclosed in Note 41 to 
the financial statements.

Neither during nor at the end of the financial year was the Group or the Company a party to any arrangements whose 
object is to enable the directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the 
Company or any other body corporate.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR

The significant events during the financial year are disclosed in Note 46 to the financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The significant events occurring after the reporting period are disclosed in Note 47 to the financial statements.

 
AUDITORS

The auditors, Messrs. Crowe Horwath, have expressed their willingness to continue in office.

Signed In accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 24 October 2016.

Wong Thean Soon					   

Dato’ Raja Haji Munir Shah Bin Raja Mustapha
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Statement by Directors
Pursuant to Section 169(15) of the Companies Act 1965

Statutory Declaration
Pursuant to Section 169(16) of the Companies Act 1965

We, Wong Thean Soon and Dato’ Raja Haji Munir Shah Bin Raja Mustapha, being two of the directors of My E.G. 
Services Berhad, state that, in the opinion of the directors, the financial statements set out on pages 64 to 142 are 
drawn up in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards 
and the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia so as to give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the Group and of the Company as of 30 June 2016 and of their financial performance and cash flows for 
the financial year ended on that date.

The supplementary information set out in Note 48, which is not part of the financial statements, is prepared in all 
material respects, in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised and Unrealised 
Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing Requirements, as 
issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors dated 24 October 2016.

Wong Thean Soon 					     Dato’ Raja Haji Munir Shah Bin Raja Mustapha

I, Wong Thean Soon, being the director primarily responsible for the financial management of My E.G. Services 
Berhad, do solemnly and sincerely declare that the financial statements set out on pages 64 to 142 are, to the best 
of my knowledge and belief, correct and I make this solemn declaration conscientiously believing the same to be true 
and by virtue of the provisions of the Statutory Declarations Act 1960.

Subscribed and solemnly declared by
Wong Thean Soon 
at Kuala Lumpur in the Federal Territory
on this 24 October 2016.

										          Wong Thean Soon

Before me	

Lai Din
No.: W 668
Commissioner for Oaths 								      
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of My E.G. Services Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No.: 505639-K

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the financial statements of My E.G. Services Berhad, which comprise the statements of financial 
position as at 30 June 2016 of the Group and of the Company, and the statements of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows of the Group and of the 
Company for the financial year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information, as set out on pages 64 to 142.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of financial statements so as to give a true and fair 
view in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and 
the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia. The directors are also responsible for such internal control 
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with approved standards on auditing in Malaysia. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgement, including the assessment of risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we 
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating 
the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group and of the 
Company as of 30 June 2016 and of their financial performance and cash flows for the financial year then ended 
in accordance with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards, International Financial Reporting Standards and the 
requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia, we also report the following:-

(a) 	 In our opinion, the accounting and other records and the registers required by the Act to be kept by the 
Company and its subsidiaries have been properly kept in accordance with the provisions of the Act.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of My E.G. Services Berhad
(Incorporated in Malaysia) Company No.: 505639-K

cont’d

(b) 	 We are satisfied that the financial statements of the subsidiaries that have been consolidated with the 
Company’s financial statements are in form and content appropriate and proper for the purposes of the 
preparation of the financial statements of the Group and we have received satisfactory information and 
explanations required by us for those purposes.

(c) 	 Our audit reports on the financial statements of the subsidiaries did not contain any qualification or any adverse 
comment made under Section 174(3) of the Act. 

The supplementary information set out in Note 48 on page 143 is disclosed to meet the requirement of Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad and is not part of the financial statements. The directors are responsible for the 
preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination 
of Realised and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad 
Listing Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants (“MIA Guidance”) and the directive of Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad. In our opinion, the supplementary information is prepared, in all material respects, in 
accordance with the MIA Guidance and the directive of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Other Matters

This report is made solely to the members of the Company, as a body, in accordance with Section 174 of the 
Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility to any other person for 
the content of this report.

Crowe Horwath								        Ooi Song Wan
Firm No.: AF 1018							       Approval No.: 02901/10/2018 J
Chartered Accountants							       Chartered Accountant

24 October 2016
Kuala Lumpur
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Statements of Financial Position
At 30 June 2016

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Investments in subsidiaries 5 - - 14,895 13,196
Investment in an associate 6 - - 400 400
Property and equipment 7 250,801 110,134 190,051 55,722
Other investments 8 9,593 8,303 - -
Development costs 9 7,119 8,955 4,272 5,372
Goodwill on consolidation 10 17,800 12,016 - -
Deferred tax asset 11 710 710 - -
Hire purchase receivables 12 518 - - -

286,541 140,118 209,618 74,690

CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories 13 3,025 - - -
Hire purchase receivables 12 58 - - -
Trade receivables 14 101,681 72,565 25,546 10,568

Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 15 45,929 31,539 16,836 21,474
Amount owing by subsidiaries 16 - - 102,541 50,424
Amount owing by an associate 17 77,083 71,220 54,383 48,520
Current tax assets 371 306 - 99
Fixed deposits with licensed banks 18 9,216 8,662 7,069 7,069
Cash and bank balances 19 200,499 123,387 99,405 48,402

437,862 307,679 305,780 186,556

TOTAL ASSETS 724,403 447,797 515,398 261,246

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Financial Position
At 30 June 2016

cont’d

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Share capital 20 240,420 120,210 240,420 120,210
Treasury shares 21 (2) (6,783) (2) (6,783)
Reserves 22 159,879 160,486 169,039 141,639

Equity attributable to owners of the Company 400,297 273,913 409,457 255,066
Non-controlling interests (161) (20) - -

TOTAL EQUITY 400,136 273,893 409,457 255,066

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term borrowings 23 83,600 6,577 77,200 -
Deferred tax liabilities 26 1,081 937 878 878

84,681 7,514 78,078 878

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Trade payables 27 173,910 113,725 366 392
Other payables and accruals 28 22,046 26,862 8,372 3,853
Deferred revenue 29 19,940 19,940 - -
Current tax liabilities 24 24 17 -
Short-term borrowings 30 23,666 5,839 19,108 1,057

239,586 166,390 27,863 5,302

TOTAL LIABILITIES 324,267 173,904 105,941 6,180

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 724,403 447,797 515,398 261,246

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income
For the financial year ended 30 June 2016

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

REVENUE 31 281,728 141,518 215,991 131,523

COST OF SALES (58,547) (24,544) (5,898) (3,838)

GROSS PROFIT 223,181 116,974 210,093 127,685

OTHER INCOME 2,307 1,991 1,205 1,260

225,488 118,965 211,298 128,945

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (61,232) (32,892) (33,395) (19,554)

OTHER EXPENSES (17,556) (16,779) (3,987) (4,167)

FINANCE COSTS (3,474) (1,081) (2,795) (225)

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 32 143,226 68,213 171,121 104,999

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 33 (707) (166) (89) (73)

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 142,519 68,047 171,032 104,926

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Item that May be Reclassified Subsequently to 
Profit or Loss
Fair value changes of available-for-sale 

financial assets - 6,700 - -

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR 142,519 74,747 171,032 104,926
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Statements of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

For the financial year ended 30 June 2016
cont’d

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

PROFIT AFTER TAXATION ATTRIBUTABLE TO:-
Owners of the Company 142,872 68,145 171,032 104,926
Non-controlling interests (353) (98) - -

142,519 68,047 171,032 104,926

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO:-
Owners of the Company 142,872 74,845 171,032 104,926
Non-controlling interests (353) (98) - -

142,519 74,747 171,032 104,926

EARNINGS PER SHARE (SEN)
- Basic 34 5.9 2.8

- Diluted 34 5.9 2.8
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Statements of Changes in Equity
For the financial year ended 30 June 2016
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Statements of Changes in Equity
For the financial year ended 30 June 2016
cont’d

 
 Non-

Distributable Distributable
Share

Capital
Treasury

Shares 
Other

Reserve
Retained

Profits
Total

Equity
The Company Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Balance at 1.7.2014 60,105 (10,237) - 77,861 127,729
Profit after taxation/Total 

comprehensive income for the 
financial year - - - 104,926 104,926

Contributions by and 
distributions to owners of the 
Company:

- Bonus issue 60,105 -        - (60,105) -
- Expenses related to bonus issue - - - (72) (72)
- Purchase of treasury shares 21 - (6,786) - - (6,786)
- Resale of treasury shares 21 - 10,240 37,009 - 47,249
- Dividends 37 - - - (17,980) (17,980)

Total transactions with owners 60,105 3,454 37,009 (78,157) 22,411

Balance at 30.6.2015/1.7.2015 120,210 (6,783) 37,009 104,630 255,066

Profit after taxation/Total 
comprehensive income for the 
financial year - - - 171,032 171,032

Contributions by and 
distributions to owners of the 
Company:

- Bonus issue 120,210 - (42,553) (77,657) -
- Expenses related to bonus issue - - - (116) (116)
- Purchase of treasury shares 21 - (4,041) - - (4,041)
- Resale of treasury shares 21 - 10,822 5,544 - 16,366
- Dividends 37 - - - (28,850) (28,850)

Total transactions with owners 120,210 6,781 (37,009) (106,623) (16,641)

Balance at 30.6.2016 240,420 (2) - 169,039 409,457

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statements of Cash Flows
For the financial year ended 30 June 2016

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation 143,226 68,213 171,121 104,999

Adjustments for:-
Amortisation of development costs 1,836 1,641 1,100 892
Bad debts written off 40 - - -
Depreciation of equipment 15,869 13,619 3,035 3,008
Equipment written off 3 3 - 3
Impairment loss:

- other investment - 857 - -
- trade receivables 58 313 - -

Interest expense 3,474 1,081 2,795 225
Gain on disposal of equipment (222) - (1) -
Gain on disposal of other investment - (245) - -
Interest income (1,993) (1,722) (1,203) (1,260)
Reversal of impairment loss on trade receivables (70) (1) - -
Unrealised gain on foreign exchange (175) - - -
Waiver of debts (60) - - -

Operating profit before working capital changes 161,986 83,759 176,847 107,867
Increase in inventories (2,560) - - -
Increase in hire purchase receivables (576) - - -
Increase in trade and other receivables (41,846) (56,109) (10,340) (5,050)
Increase in trade and other payables 52,006 120,355 4,493 808
Decrease in amount owing by subsidiaries - - - 960
Increase in amount owing by an associate (2,544) (2,436) (2,544) (2,436)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIONS/BALANCE 
CARRIED FORWARD 166,466 145,569 168,456 102,149
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Statements of Cash Flows
For the financial year ended 30 June 2016
cont’d

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

BALANCE CARRIED FORWARD 166,466 145,569 168,456 102,149
Interest paid (3,474) (1,081) (2,795) (225)
Income tax (paid)/refunded (583) (519) 27 (78)

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 162,409 143,969 165,688 101,846

CASH FLOWS FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of non-controlling interests 35.2 (3) - - -
Advances to an associate (3,319) (4,433) (3,319)   (4,433)
Development costs paid - (628) -  -
Interest received 1,993 1,722 1,203 1,260
Advances to subsidiaries - - (53,816) (43,374)
Increase in pledged deposits with licensed banks (445) (283) - (283)
Proceeds from disposal of equipment 235 13 1 13
Purchase of equipment 38 (151,074) (44,664) (137,364) (34,972)
Proceeds from disposal of other investment - 385 - -
Purchase of other investments (1,290) (510) - -
Net cash (out)/inflow from acquisition of 

subsidiaries
35.1(a) 

and 
35.1(b)

(4,686) 5 - -

Subscription of shares in a subsidiary by non-
controlling interest # # - -

NET CASH FOR INVESTING ACTIVITIES (158,589) (48,393) (193,295) (81,789)

# - represents an amount less than RM1,000.
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Statements of Cash Flows
For the financial year ended 30 June 2016

cont’d

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

Note RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid 37 (28,850) (17,980) (28,850) (17,980)
Drawdown of term loans 86,308 1,400 86,308 -
Drawdown of revolving credit 10,000 2,000 10,000 2,000
Purchase of treasury shares 21 (4,041) (6,786) (4,041) (6,786)
Resale of treasury shares 21 16,366 47,249 16,366 47,249
Bonus issue expenses (116) (72) (116) (72)
Proceeds on disposal of partial interest in a 

subsidiary that does not involve loss of control 36.1 # - - -
Repayment of hire purchase and finance lease 

obligations (4,190) (4,207) - -
Repayment of term loans (2,076) (2,360) (1,057) (1,077)
Repayment of revolving credit - (5,000) - (5,000)

NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 73,401 14,244 78,610 18,334

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 77,221 109,820 51,003 38,391

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING 
OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR 123,481 13,661 48,464 10,073

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE 
FINANCIAL YEAR 39 200,702 123,481 99,467 48,464

# - represents an amount less than RM1,000.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 30 June 2016

1.	 GENERAL INFORMATION

	 The Company is a public company limited by shares and is incorporated under the Companies Act 1965 
in Malaysia. The domicile of the Company is in Malaysia and listed on the Main Market of Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad. The registered office and principal place of business are as follows:-

	 Registered office	 :	 Lot 6.05, Level 6, KPMG Tower,
					     No. 8, First Avenue,
					     Bandar Utama,
					     47800 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan.

	 Principal place of business	 :	 Level 8, 1 First Avenue, 
					     Persiaran Bandar Utama, Bandar Utama,
					     47800 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan.

	 The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in accordance with a resolution of 
the directors dated 24 October 2016.

2.	 PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

	 The Company is principally engaged in the businesses of development and implementation of the Electronic 
Government Services project and the provision of other related services for the Electronic Government Services 
project, as well as investment holding. The principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 5 to the financial 
statements. There have been no significant changes in the nature of these activities during the financial year. 

3.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION 

	 The financial statements of the Group are prepared under the historical cost convention and modified to include 
other bases of valuation as disclosed in other sections under significant accounting policies, and in compliance 
with Malaysian Financial Reporting Standards (“MFRSs”), International Financial Reporting Standards and the 
requirements of Companies Act 1965 in Malaysia.

	 (a)	 No new accounting standards and interpretations (including the consequential amendments) have been 
adopted by the Group during the current financial year.

	 (b)	 The Group has not applied in advance the following accounting standard(s) and/or interpretation(s) 
(including the consequential amendments, if any) that have been issued by the Malaysian Accounting 
Standards Board (MASB) but are not yet effective for the current financial year:-

MFRSs and/or IC Interpretations (Including The Consequential Amendments) Effective Date

MFRS 9 Financial Instruments (IFRS 9 issued by IASB in July 2014) 1 January 2018
MFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts 1 January 2016
MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
MFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019
Amendments to MFRS2: Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment 

Transactions 1 January 2018
Amendments to MFRS 10 and MFRS 128: Sale or Contribution of Assets between 

an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture
Deferred until

further  notice
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 30 June 2016

cont’d

3.	 BASIS OF PREPARATION  cont’d

	 (b)	 The Group has not applied in advance the following accounting standard(s) and/or interpretation(s) 
(including the consequential amendments, if any) that have been issued by the Malaysian Accounting 
Standards Board (MASB) but are not yet effective for the current financial year:-  cont’d

MFRSs and/or IC Interpretations (Including The Consequential Amendments) Effective Date
Amendments to MFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint 

Operations 1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRS 10, MFRS 12 and MFRS 128: Investment Entities – 

Applying the Consolidation Exception 1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRS 15: Effective Date of MFRS 15 1 January 2018
Amendments to MFRS 15: Clarifications to MFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 

Customers’ 1 January 2018
Amendments to MFRS 101: Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRS 107: Disclosure Initiative 1 January 2017
Amendments to MFRS 112: Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised 

Losses 1 January 2017
Amendments to MFRS 116 and MFRS 138: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of 

Depreciation and Amortisation 1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRS 116 and MFRS 141: Agriculture – Bearer Plants 1 January 2016
Amendments to MFRS 127: Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2016
Annual Improvements to MFRSs 2012 – 2014 Cycle 1 January 2016

 		  The adoption of the above accounting standard(s) and/or interpretation(s) (including the consequential 
amendments, if any) is expected to have no material impact on the financial statements of the Group upon 
their initial application except as follows:-

		  MFRS 9 (IFRS 9 issued by IASB in July 2014) replaces the existing guidance in MFRS 139 and introduces 
a revised guidance on the classification and measurement of financial instruments, including a single 
forward-looking ‘expected loss’ impairment model for calculating impairment on financial assets, and a 
new approach to hedge accounting. Under this MFRS 9, the classification of financial assets is driven by 
cash flow characteristics and the business model in which a financial asset is held. The Group is currently 
assessing the financial impact of adopting MFRS 9.

		  MFRS 15 establishes a single comprehensive model for revenue recognition and will supersede the current 
revenue recognition guidance and other related interpretations when it becomes effective. Under MFRS 
15, an entity shall recognise revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ 
of the distinct promised goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred 
to the customers. The amendments to MFRS 15 further clarify the concept of ‘distinct’ for the purposes 
of this accounting standard. In addition, extensive disclosures are also required by MFRS 15. The Group 
anticipates that the application of MFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on the amounts 
reported and disclosures made in the financial statements. However, it is not practicable to provide a 
reasonable estimate of the financial impacts of MFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.   
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 30 June 2016
cont’d

4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

	 4.1	 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

		  Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated by the directors and management and are based 
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates and judgements that affect the application of the 
Group’s accounting policies and disclosures, and have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to 
the carrying amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses are discussed below:-

	 	 (a)	 Depreciation of Property and Equipment 

			   The estimates for the residual values, useful lives and related depreciation charges for the equipment 
are based on commercial factors which could change significantly as a result of technical innovations 
and competitors’ actions in response to the market conditions. The Group anticipates that the 
residual values of its property and equipment will be insignificant. As a result, residual values are 
not being taken into consideration for the computation of the depreciable amount. Changes in the 
expected level of usage and technological development could impact the economic useful lives and 
the residual values of these assets, therefore future depreciation charges could be revised. 

		  (b)	 Income Taxes

			   There are certain transactions and computations for which the ultimate tax determination may be 
different from the initial estimate. The Group recognises tax liabilities based on its understanding 
of the prevailing tax laws and estimates of whether such taxes will be due in the ordinary course of 
business. Where the final outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially 
recognised, such difference will impact the income tax expenses and deferred tax balances in the 
year in which such determination is made.

	 	 (c)	 Impairment of Non-financial Assets

			   When the recoverable amount of an asset is determined based on the estimate of the value in use 
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset is allocated, the management is required to make an 
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to apply a suitable 
discount rate in order to determine the present value of those cash flows.

		  (d)	 Write-down of Inventories

			   Reviews are made periodically by management on damaged, obsolete and slow-moving inventories. 
These reviews require judgement and estimates. Possible changes in these estimates could result in 
revisions to the valuation of inventories.

	 	 (e)	 Amortisation of Development Costs

			   Changes in the expected level of usage and technological development could impact the economic 
useful lives and therefore, future amortisation charges could be revised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 30 June 2016

cont’d

4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  cont’d 

	 4.1	 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements  cont’d 

		  (f)	 Impairment of Trade and Other Receivables

			   An impairment loss is recognised when there is objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired. 
Management specifically reviews its loan and receivables financial assets and analyses historical bad 
debts, customer concentrations, customer creditworthiness, current economic trends and changes in 
the customer payment terms when making a judgement to evaluate the adequacy of the allowance 
for impairment losses. Where there is objective evidence of impairment, the amount and timing of 
future cash flows are estimated based on historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk 
characteristics. If the expectation is different from the estimation, such difference will impact the 
carrying value of receivables.

		  (g)	 Impairment of Available-for-sale Financial Assets

			   The Group reviews its available-for-sale financial assets at the end of each reporting period to assess 
whether they are impaired. The Group also records impairment loss on available-for-sale equity 
investments when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below their 
cost. The determination of what is “significant’ or “prolonged” requires judgement. In making this 
judgement, the Group evaluates, among other factors, historical share price movements and the 
duration and extent to which the fair value of an investment is less than its cost.

		  (h)	 Impairment of Goodwill 

			   Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and at other times when such indicators exist. This 
requires management to estimate the expected future cash flows of the cash-generating unit to 
which goodwill is allocated and to apply a suitable discount rate in order to determine the present 
value of those cash flows. The future cash flows are most sensitive to budgeted gross margins, 
growth rates estimated and discount rate used. If the expectation is different from the estimation, 
such difference will impact the carrying value of goodwill.

	 	 (i)	 Fair Value Estimates for Certain Financial Assets
	
			   The Group carries certain financial assets at fair value, which requires extensive use of accounting 

estimates and judgement. While significant components of fair value measurement were determined 
using verifiable objective evidence, the amount of changes in fair value would differ if the Group 
uses different valuation methodologies. Any changes in fair value of these assets and liabilities would 
affect profit and/or equity.

	 4.2	 Basis of Consolidation

		  The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries 
made up to the end of the reporting period.

		  Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities, if any) controlled by the Group. The Group controls 
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the 
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Potential voting rights 
are considered when assessing control only when such rights are substantive. The Group also considers 
it has de facto power over an investee when, despite not having the majority of voting rights, it has the 
current ability to direct the activities of the investee that significantly affect the investee’s return.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 30 June 2016
cont’d

4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  cont’d 

	 4.2	 Basis of Consolidation  cont’d 

		  Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group up to the 
effective date on which control ceases, as appropriate.

		  Intragroup transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. Intragroup losses 
may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Where 
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to ensure consistency of 
accounting policies with those of the Group.

	 	 (a)	 Business Combinations 

			   Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. Under the acquisition 
method, the consideration transferred for acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair value of the assets 
transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group at the acquisition 
date. The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a 
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related costs, other than the costs to issue debt 
or equity securities, are recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

			   In a business combination achieved in stages, previously held equity interests in the acquiree are 
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date and any corresponding gain or loss is recognised in 
profit or loss. 

			   Non-controlling interests in the acquiree may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets at the 
date of acquisition. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. 

		  (b)	 Non-controlling Interests

			   Non-controlling interests are presented within equity in the consolidated statement of financial 
position, separately from the equity attributable to owners of the Company. Profit or loss and each 
component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the 
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-controlling interests even 
if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. 

	 	 (c)	 Changes in Ownership Interests in Subsidiaries without Change of Control

			   All changes in the parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control 
are accounted for as equity transactions. Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interest is adjusted and the fair value of consideration paid or received is recognised 
directly in equity of the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 30 June 2016

cont’d

4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  cont’d 

	 4.2	 Basis of Consolidation  cont’d

	 	 (d)	 Loss of Control

			   Upon loss of control of a subsidiary, the Group recognises any gain or loss on disposal in profit or loss 
which is calculated as the difference between:-

			   (i)	 the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained 
interest in the former subsidiary; and

			   (ii)	 the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the former 
subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.

			   Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the former subsidiary 
are accounted for in the same manner as would be required if the relevant assets or liabilities were 
disposed of (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained profits). The fair value 
of any investments retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as 
the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under MFRS 139 or, when applicable, 
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

	 4.3	 Goodwill

		  Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. The carrying value of goodwill is 
reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently, if events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
the carrying amount may be impaired. The impairment value of goodwill is recognised immediately in 
profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

		  Under the acquisition method, any excess of the sum of the fair value of the consideration transferred in 
the business combination, the amount of non-controlling interests recognised and the fair value of the 
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), over the net fair value of the acquiree’s 
identifiable assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition is recorded as goodwill. 

		  Where the latter amount exceeds the former, after reassessment, the excess represents a bargain 
purchase gain and is recognised as a gain in profit or loss.

		  In respect of equity-accounted associates, the carrying amount of goodwill is included in the carrying 
amount of the investment and an impairment loss on such an investment is not allocated to any asset, 
including goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the equity-accounted associates.

	 4.4	 Functional and Foreign Currencies

	 	 (a)	 Functional and Presentation Currency 

			   The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are presented in the currency of the 
primary economic environment in which the entity operates, which is the functional currency. 

			   The consolidated financial statements are presented in Ringgit Malaysia (“RM”), which is the 
Company’s functional and presentation currency and has been rounded to the nearest thousand, 
unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 30 June 2016
cont’d

4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  cont’d 

	 4.4	 Functional and Foreign Currencies  cont’d 

	 	 (b)	 Transactions and Balances

			   Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into the respective functional currencies on initial 
recognition, using the exchange rates approximating those ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary 
assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period are translated at the rates ruling as of that 
date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rates that existed when the 
values were determined. All exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss.

	 4.5	 Financial Instruments
	
		  Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement of financial position when the 

Group has become a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

		  Financial instruments are classified as financial assets, financial liabilities or equity instruments in 
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and their definitions in MFRS 132. Interest, 
dividends, gains and losses relating to a financial instrument classified as a liability, are reported as an 
expense or income. Distributions to holders of financial instruments classified as equity are charged 
directly to equity.

		  Financial instruments are offset when the Group has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends to 
settle either on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

		  A financial instrument is recognised initially at its fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable 
to the acquisition or issue of the financial instrument (other than a financial instrument at fair value 
through profit or loss) are added to/deducted from the fair value on initial recognition, as appropriate. 
Transaction costs on the financial instrument at fair value through profit or loss are recognised 
immediately in profit or loss.

		  Financial instruments recognised in the statement of financial position are disclosed in the policy 
statement associated with each item.

		  (a)	 Financial Assets 

			   On initial recognition, financial assets are classified as either financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables financial assets, or available-for-
sale financial assets, as appropriate. 

	 	 	 (i)	 Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss 

				    Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss when the 
financial asset is either held for trading or is designated to eliminate or significantly reduce a 
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise. Derivatives are also 
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.

				    Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value, with any gains or 
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. Dividend income from this 
category of financial assets is recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive 
payment is established.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 30 June 2016

cont’d

4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  cont’d

	 4.5	 Financial Instruments  cont’d

		  (a)	 Financial Assets  cont’d

	 	 	 (i)	 Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss  cont’d

				    Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss could be presented as current assets or non-
current assets. Financial assets that are held primarily for trading purposes are presented as 
current assets whereas financial assets that are not held primarily for trading purposes are 
presented as current assets or non-current assets based on the settlement date.

				    As at the end of the reporting period, there were no financial assets classified under this 
category.

	 	 	 (ii)	 Held-to-maturity Investments

				    Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments and fixed maturities that the management has the positive intention and ability 
to hold to maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method less any impairment loss, with interest income recognised in profit or 
loss on an effective yield basis.

				    Held-to-maturity investments are classified as non-current assets, except for those having 
maturity within 12 months after the reporting date which are classified as current assets.

				    As at the end of the reporting period, there were no financial assets classified under this 
category.

	 	 	 (iii)	 Loans and Receivables Financial Assets

				    Trade receivables and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market are classified as loans and receivables financial assets. Loans and 
receivables financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, 
less any impairment loss. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, 
except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

				    Loans and receivables financial assets are classified as current assets, except for those having 
settlement dates later than 12 months after the reporting date which are classified as non-
current assets.

	 	 	 (iv)	 Available-for-sale Financial Assets

				    Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are designated in this 
category or are not classified in any of the other categories.

				    After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are remeasured to their fair values 
at the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are 
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the fair value reserve, with 
the exception of impairment losses. On derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss previously 
accumulated in the fair value reserve is reclassified from equity into profit or loss. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 30 June 2016
cont’d

4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  cont’d

	 4.5	 Financial Instruments  cont’d

		  (a)	 Financial Assets  cont’d

	 	 	 (iv)	 Available-for-sale Financial Assets  cont’d

				    Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the 
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

				    Investments in equity instruments whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured 
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

				    Available-for-sale financial assets are classified as non-current assets unless they are expected 
to be realised within 12 months after the reporting date.

	 	 (b)	 Financial Liabilities

			   All financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs 
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method other than those 
categorised as fair value through profit or loss.

			   Fair value through profit or loss category comprises financial liabilities that are either held for trading 
or are designated to eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or recognition inconsistency 
that would otherwise arise. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are 
designated as hedges.

			   Financial liabilities are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to 
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

	 	 (c)	 Equity Instruments

			   Instruments classified as equity are measured at cost and are not remeasured subsequently.

			   (i)	 Ordinary Shares

				    Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new ordinary shares are shown in equity 
as a deduction, net of tax, from proceeds.

				    Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as liabilities when approved for appropriation.

			   (ii)	 Treasury Shares

				    When the Company’s own shares recognised as equity are bought back, the amount of the 
consideration paid, including all costs directly attributable, are recognised as a deduction from 
equity. Own shares purchased that are not subsequently cancelled are classified as treasury 
shares and are presented as a deduction from total equity. No gain or loss is recognised in 
profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of treasury shares.

				    Where treasury shares are sold, the difference between the sales consideration and the 
carrying amount of the treasury shares are shown as a movement in equity. When the 
consideration received is more than the carrying amount, the credit difference arising is taken 
to the share premium account. Where the consideration received is less than the carrying 
amount, the debit difference is offset against reserves.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  cont’d

	 4.5	 Financial Instruments  cont’d

		  (d)	 Derecognition

			   A financial asset or part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the contractual rights to the cash 
flows from the financial asset expire or the financial asset is transferred to another party without 
retaining control or substantially all risks and rewards of the asset. On derecognition of a financial 
asset, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received 
(including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and any cumulative gain or loss 
that had been recognised in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

			   A financial liability or a part of it is derecognised when, and only when, the obligation specified in the 
contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.  On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference 
between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party 
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is 
recognised in profit or loss. 

	 	 (e)	 Financial Guarantee Contracts

			   A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to 
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specific debtor fails to make payment when due in 
accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

			   The Group designates corporate guarantees given to financial institutions for credit facilities granted 
to subsidiaries and related as insurance contracts as defined in MFRS 4 Insurance Contracts. The 
Group recognises these corporate guarantees as liabilities when there is a present obligation, legal or 
constructive, as a result of a past event, when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation.

	 4.6	 Investments in Subsidiaries

		  Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost in the statement of financial position of the Company, and 
are reviewed for impairment at the end of the reporting period if events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying values may not be recoverable. The cost of the investments includes transaction 
costs.

		  On the disposal of the investments in subsidiaries, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and 
the carrying amount of the investments is recognised in profit or loss.

	 4.7	 Investments in Associates

		  An associate is an entity in which the Group and the Company have a long-term equity interest and where 
it exercises significant influence over the financial and operating policies.

		  Investments in associates are stated at cost in the statement of financial position of the Company, and are 
reviewed for impairment at the end of the reporting period if events or changes in circumstances indicate 
that the carrying values may not be recoverable. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs.
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  cont’d

	 4.7	 Investments in Associates  cont’d

		  The investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated statement of financial position 
using the equity method, based on the financial statements of the associate made up to the end of the 
reporting period. The Group’s share of the post acquisition profits and other comprehensive income of 
the associate is included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, 
after adjustment if any, to align the accounting policies with those of the Group, from the date that 
significant influence commences up to the effective date on which significant influence ceases or when the 
investment is classified as held for sale. The Group’s interest in the associate is carried in the consolidated 
statement of financial position at cost plus the Group’s share of the post-acquisition retained profits and 
reserves. The cost of investment includes transaction costs.

		  When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an associate, the carrying amount of that interest 
is reduced to zero, and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the 
Group has an obligation.

		  Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the 
Group’s interest in the associate. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless cost cannot be recovered.

	 4.8	 Property and Equipment 

		  Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. 

		  Depreciation is charged to profit or loss (unless it is included in the carrying amount of another asset) on 
the straight-line method to write off the depreciable amount of the assets over their estimated useful 
lives. Depreciation of an asset does not cease when the asset becomes idle or is retired from active use 
unless the asset is fully depreciated. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are:-

IT Terminals 20%
Motor vehicles 16 - 20%
Office and communication equipment 10 - 12%
Office furniture and renovation 10%
Computers 20%
Software 20%

 
		  Capital work-in-progress represents assets under construction, and which are not ready for commercial 

use at the end of the reporting period. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost, and is transferred to 
the relevant category of assets and depreciated accordingly when the assets are completed and ready for 
commercial use.

		  Cost of capital work-in-progress includes direct cost, related expenditure and interest cost on borrowings 
taken to finance the acquisition of the assets to the date that the assets are completed and put into use.

		  The depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at 
the end of each reporting period to ensure that the amounts, method and periods of depreciation are 
consistent with previous estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic 
benefits embodied in the items of the property and equipment.
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  cont’d

	 4.8	 Property and Equipment  cont’d

		  Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when the cost is incurred and it is probable that the future economic benefits associated 
with the asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. The carrying 
amount of parts that are replaced is derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property 
and equipment are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Cost also comprises the initial estimate of 
dismantling and removing the asset and restoring the site on which it is located for which the Group is 
obligated to incur when the asset is acquired, if applicable.

		  An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected from its use. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of the asset is recognised in profit or loss. 

	 4.9	 Development Expenditure

		  Development expenditure is recognised as an expense except that costs incurred on development projects 
are capitalised as non-current assets to the extent that such expenditure is expected to generate future 
economic benefits. Development expenditure is capitalised if, and only if an entity can demonstrate all of 
the following:-

		  (a)	 its ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the asset under development;
		  (b)	 the product or process is technically and commercially feasible;
		  (c)	 its future economic benefits are profitable;
		  (d)	 its intention to complete and the ability to use or sell the developed asset; and
		  (e)	 the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the asset under 

development.

		  Capitalised development expenditure is measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment 
losses, if any. Development expenditure initially recognised as an expense is not recognised as assets in 
the subsequent period.

		  The development expenditure is amortised on a straight-line method over a period of their expected 
benefits but not exceeding 20 years when the products are ready for sale or use. In the event that 
the expected future economic benefits are no longer probable of being recovered, the development 
expenditure is written down to its recoverable amount.

		  The amortisation method, useful life and residual value are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the 
end of each reporting period.

	 4.10	 Impairment 

		  (a)	 Impairment of Financial Assets

			   All financial assets (other than those categorised at fair value through profit or loss), are assessed at 
the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence of impairment as a result 
of one or more events having an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the asset. For an 
equity instrument, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost is considered to 
be objective evidence of impairment. 
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  cont’d

	 4.10	 Impairment  cont’d	

		  (a)	 Impairment of Financial Assets  cont’d

			   An impairment loss in respect of held-to-maturity investments and loans and receivables financial 
assets is recognised in profit or loss and is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying 
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s 
original effective interest rate.

			   An impairment loss in respect of available-for-sale financial assets is recognised in profit or loss and 
is measured as the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and amortisation) and 
its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in the fair value reserve. In 
addition, the cumulative loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity 
under fair value reserve, is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

			   With the exception of available-for-sale equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount 
of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring 
after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through 
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment 
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not 
been recognised. In respect of available-for-sale equity instruments, impairment losses previously 
recognised in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value 
subsequent to an impairment loss made is recognised in other comprehensive income. 

			   An impairment loss in respect of unquoted equity instrument that is carried at cost is recognised in 
profit or loss and is measured as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount and 
the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a 
similar financial asset.  Such impairment losses are not reversed in subsequent periods.

		  (b)	 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

			   The carrying values of assets, other than those to which MFRS 136 - Impairment of Assets does not 
apply, are reviewed at the end of each reporting period for impairment when an annual impairment 
assessment is compulsory or there is an indication that the assets might be impaired. Impairment 
is measured by comparing the carrying values of the assets with their recoverable amounts. When 
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is written down to its 
recoverable amount and an impairment loss shall be recognised. The recoverable amount of the 
assets is the higher of the assets’ fair value less costs to sell and their value in use, which is measured 
by reference to discounted future cash flow using a pre-tax discount rate. Where it is not possible to 
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount 
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 

			   An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the asset is carried at its 
revalued amount. Any impairment loss of a revalued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease to 
the extent of a previously recognised revaluation surplus for the same asset. Impairment losses 
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of 
any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating units and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the 
other assets in the cash-generating unit on a pro rate basis.

			   In respect of assets other than goodwill, and when there is a change in the estimates used to 
determine the recoverable amount, a subsequent increase in the recoverable amount of an asset is 
treated as a reversal of the previous impairment loss and is recognised to the extent of the carrying 
amount of the asset that would have been determined (net of amortisation and depreciation) had no 
impairment loss been recognised. The reversal is recognised in profit or loss immediately, unless the 
asset is carried at its revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as 
a revaluation increase.
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  cont’d

	 4.11	 Equipment under Hire Purchase
	
		  Assets acquired under hire purchase are capitalised in the financial statements as equipment and the 

corresponding obligations are treated as hire purchase payables. The assets capitalised are measured at 
the lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of the minimum lease payments and 
are depreciated on the same basis as owned assets. Each hire purchase payment is allocated between 
the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant periodic rate of charge on the hire purchase 
outstanding. Finance charges are recognised in profit or loss over the period of the respective hire 
purchase agreements.

	 4.12	 Inventories

		  Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in-first-
out basis and comprises the purchase price and incidentals incurred in bringing the inventories to their 
present location and condition.

		  Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less the estimated costs of completion and the 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

	 4.13	 Provisions

		  Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result 
of past events, when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation, and when a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are 
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where 
the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is the present value of the estimated 
expenditure required to settle the obligation. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as interest 
expense in profit or loss.

	 4.14	 Operating Leases

		  Leases in which the Group does not assume substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are 
classified as operating leases. Payments are made under operating leases (net of any incentives received 
from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line method over the lease period. 

	 4.15	 Income Taxes

		  Income tax for the reporting period comprises current and deferred tax.

		  Current tax is the expected amount of income taxes payable in respect of the taxable profit for the 
reporting period and is measured using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at 
the end of the reporting period.

		  Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences other than those that arise 
from goodwill or excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, 
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the business combination costs or from the initial recognition of an 
asset or liability in a transaction which is not a business combination and at the time of the transaction, 
affects neither accounting profit nor taxable profit.
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  cont’d

	 4.15	 Income Taxes  cont’d

		  Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused 
tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised. The carrying 
amounts of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available to allow all or part 
of the deferred tax assets to be utilised.

		  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period 
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on the tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.

		  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax 
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the 
same taxation authority.

		  Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred 
tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transactions either in other comprehensive 
income or directly in equity and deferred tax arising from a business combination is adjusted against 
goodwill or excess of the acquirer’s interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, 
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the business combination costs.

	 4.16	 Cash and Cash Equivalents

		  Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances, demand deposits, and short-term, highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value with original maturity period of three months or less.

	 4.17	 Employee Benefits

	 	 (a)	 Short-term Benefits

			   Wages, salaries, paid annual leave and sick leave, bonuses and non-monetary benefits are measured on 
an undiscounted basis and recognised in profit or loss and included in the development costs, where 
appropriate, in the period in which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Group.

	 	 (b)	 Defined Contribution Plans

			   The Group’s contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised in profit or loss and included in 
the development costs, where appropriate, in the period to which they relate. Once the contributions 
have been paid, the Group has no further liability in respect of the defined contribution plans. 

	 4.18	 Related Parties

		  A party is related to an entity (referred to as the “reporting entity”) if:-

		  (a)	 A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to a reporting entity if that person:-

			   (i)	 has control or joint control over the reporting entity;
			   (ii)	 has significant influence over the reporting entity; or
			   (iii)	 is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the 

reporting entity.
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  cont’d

	 4.18	 Related Parties  cont’d 

		  Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or 
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the reporting entity.

(b)	 An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:-

			   (i)	 The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each 
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

			   (ii)	 One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture 
of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

			   (iii)	 Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
			   (iv)	 One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
			   (v)	 The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the 

reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a 
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity.

			   (vi)	 The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a) above.
			   (vii) 	 A person identified in (a)(i) above has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the 

key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
			   (viii)	 The entity, or any member of a company of which it is a part, provides key management 

personnel services to the reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting entity.

		  Related parties also include key management personnel defined as those persons having authority and 
responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the reporting entity either directly or 
indirectly, including any director (whether executive or otherwise) of that entity.

	 4.19	 Borrowing Costs

		  Borrowing costs, directly attributable to the acquisition and construction of property and equipment are 
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are ready for their intended 
use or sale. The capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended during extended periods in which active 
development is interrupted.

		  All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss as expenses in the period in which they incurred.

	 4.20	 Contingent Liabilities

		  A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will only be 
confirmed by the occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the 
Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not 
probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be 
measured reliably.

		  A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When a 
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as 
a provision.
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  cont’d

	 4.21	 Fair Value Measurements

		  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is 
directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique. The measurement assumes that the 
transaction takes place either in the principal market or in the absence of a principal market, in the most 
advantageous market. For non-financial asset, the fair value measurement takes into account a market 
participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by 
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

		  For financial reporting purposes, the fair value measurements are analysed into level 1 to level 3 as 
follows:-

		  Level 1:	 Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liability that the 
entity can access at the measurement date;

		  Level 2:	 Inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the 
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

		  Level 3:	 Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

		  The transfer of fair value between levels is determined as of the date of the event or change in 
circumstances that caused the transfer.

	 4.22	 Revenue and Other Income

		  (a)	 Sale of Goods

			   Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and is recognised upon 
delivery of goods and customers’ acceptance and where applicable, net of returns, cash and trade 
discounts.

		  (b)	 Services

			   Revenue is recognised upon the rendering of services when the outcome of the transaction can be 
estimated reliably by reference to the stage of completion at the end of the reporting period. The 
stage of completion is determined by reference to the surveys of work performed. In the event the 
outcome of the transaction could not be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised to the extent of 
the expenses incurred.

		  (c)	 Interest Income

			   Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method.

		  (d)	 Dividend Income

			   Dividend income from investment is recognised when the right to receive dividend payment is 
established.

		  (e)	 Rental Income

			   Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line method over the lease term.
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4.	 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  cont’d

	 4.23	 Deferred Revenue

		  The portion of the unrealised gain from the sale of enterprise solutions, which is deferred and disclosed as 
deferred revenue, is recognised on a straight-line basis over the period of their expected benefits.

	 4.24	 Operating Segments

		  An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may 
earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any 
of the Group’s other components. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by the 
chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and 
assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available.

	 4.25	 Earnings Per Ordinary Share

		  Basic earnings per ordinary share is calculated by dividing the consolidated profit or loss attributable to 
ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
during the reporting period, adjusted for own shares held.

 
5.	 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

	 The Company
2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Unquoted shares in Malaysia, at cost 14,895 13,196

	 The details of the subsidiaries are as follows:-

Name of Subsidiary
Principal Place

of Business
Effective 

Equity Interest Principal Activities
2016 2015

% %

Gale Vector Sdn. Bhd. (“GVSB”) Malaysia 100 100 Provision of software solutions and 
maintenance services.

My EG Sdn. Bhd. (“EGSB”) Malaysia 100 100 Development and implementation of 
the Electronic Government services 
project and provision of other 
related services.

MY E.G. Commerce Sdn. Bhd. 
(“MECSB”)

Malaysia 100 100 Provision of auto insurance 
intermediary services and other 
related ancillary services.

MY E.G. Capital Sdn. Bhd. 
(“MYEGC”)

Malaysia 100 100 Investment holding.
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5.	 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES  cont’d

	 The details of the subsidiaries are as follows:-  cont’d

Name of Subsidiary
Principal Place

of Business
Effective 

Equity Interest Principal Activities
2016 2015

% %

Subsidiaries of MYEGC

MY EG Ad Networks Sdn. Bhd. 
(“MYEGAD”)

Malaysia 100 100 Provision of online advertisement.

Ipidato Dot Com Sdn. Bhd. 
(“Ipidato DC”)

Malaysia 100 70 Dormant.

Car X Services Sdn. Bhd. 
(“CarX”)

Malaysia 55 80 To operate and manage automotive 
classified web portal and other 
value added services for the 
automotive classified web portal.

MY E.G. Credit Sdn. Bhd. 
(formerly known as MY E.G. 
Payment Services Sdn. Bhd.) 
(“MYEGCDT”)

Malaysia 100 - Provision of financial lease activities 
and other credit granting activities.

MY E.G. Alternative Payment 
Services Sdn. Bhd.
(“MYEG ALT”)

Malaysia 100 - Dormant.

Picasso Media Sdn. Bhd. 
(“Picasso Media”)

Malaysia 60 - Dormant.

CardBiz Holding Sdn. Bhd. 
(“CardBiz”)

Malaysia 55 - Investment holding.

Subsidiaries of CardBiz

CardBiz Solutions Sdn. Bhd. 
(“CSSB”)

Malaysia 55 - Computer software and hardware.

CardBiz Payment Services Sdn. 
Bhd. (“CPSSB”)

Malaysia 55 - Information technology and credit 
card terminal rental and other 
related activities.

CardBiz Technologies Sdn. Bhd. 
(“CTSB”)

Malaysia 55 - Trading of computer hardware, 
accessories and related products.
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5.	 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES  cont’d

	 The details of the subsidiaries are as follows:-  cont’d

Name of Subsidiary
Principal Place

of Business
Effective 

Equity Interest Principal Activities
2016 2015

% %

Subsidiaries of CardBiz  cont’d

Buy Now Asia Sdn. Bhd. 
(“BNASB”)

Malaysia 55 - E-Commerce service provider, online 
purchase and redemption and other 
related activities.

CardBiz eServices Sdn. Bhd. 
(“CESB”)

Malaysia 55 - Dormant.

Subsidiaries of EGSB

MyEG Trade Sdn. Bhd. 
(“MTSB”)

Malaysia 100 - Trading of motor vehicles and 
provision of ancillary services.

	
(a)	 During the financial year:-

(i)	 On 21 May 2015, MYEGC entered into a conditional Sale and Purchase Agreement to acquire 
61,609,301 ordinary shares of RM0.10 each representing 55% equity interests in CardBiz for a total 
cash consideration of RM6,234,300. The acquisition was completed on 28 August 2015.

(ii)	 On 5 August 2015, EGSB acquired 2 ordinary shares of RM1 each representing 100% equity interests 
in MTSB for a total cash consideration of RM2 and subsequently subscribed for 99,998 ordinary 
shares of RM1 each in MTSB for a total cash consideration of RM99,998.

(iii)	 On 11 August 2015, MYEGC disposed of 250 ordinary shares of RM1 each representing 25% equity 
interests in CarX for a total cash consideration of RM250. Following the completion of the disposal, 
CarX became a 55%-owned subsidiary of the Company.

(iv)	 On 28 August 2015, CardBiz acquired the remaining 200,000 ordinary shares of RM1 each 
representing 40% equity interests in BNASB for a total cash consideration of RM133,400 from its non-
controlling interests. Consequently, BNASB became a wholly-owned subsidiary of CardBiz.

	 Subsequently, CardBiz subscribed for 200,000 ordinary shares of RM1 each in BNASB for a total cash 
consideration of RM200,000.

(v)	 On 3 February 2016, MYEGC subscribed for 1,499,998 ordinary shares of RM1 each in a wholly-
owned subsidiary, MYEGAD for a total cash consideration of RM1,499,998.

(vi)	 On 19 February 2016, MYEGC acquired 2 ordinary shares of RM1 each representing 100% equity 
interests in MYEGCDT for a total cash consideration of RM2. Subsequently, the Company further 
subscribed for 2,000,000 ordinary shares of RM1 each in MYEGCDT by capitalising the amount owing 
by MYEGCDT of RM2,000,00.

(vii)	 On 20 May 2016, MYEGC acquired 100% equity interests in Ipidato DC. from a wholly-owned 
subsidiary, MYEGAD, for a total cash consideration of RM10,000.
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5.	 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES  cont’d

(a)	 During the financial year:-  cont’d

(viii)	 On 24 May 2016, MYEGC acquired 2 ordinary shares of RM1 each representing 100% equity 
interests in MYEG ALT for a total cash consideration of RM2. Subsequently, the Company further 
subscribed for 4,999,998 ordinary shares of RM1 each in MYEG ALT for a total cash consideration of 
RM4,999,998.

(ix)	 On 31 May 2016, MYEGC subscribed for 60 ordinary shares of RM1 each representing 60% equity 
interests in Picasso Media for a total cash consideration of RM60.

(x)	 On 30 June 2016, the Company subscribed for 700,000 ordinary shares of RM1 each in MECSB by 
capitalising the amount owing by MECSB of RM700,000.

(xi)	 On 30 June 2016, the Company subscribed for 999,998 ordinary shares of RM1 each in MYEGC by 
capitalising the amount owing by MYEGC of RM999,998.

(b)	 The summarised financial information (before intra-group elimination) for each subsidiary that has non-
controlling interests do not presented as the non-controlling interests are not material for the Group.

6.	 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Unquoted shares in Malaysia, at cost 400 400 400 400
Share of post-acquisition losses (400) (400) - -

- - 400 400
								      

	 The details of the associate are as follows:-
	

Name of Associate
Principal Place 

of Business
Effective Equity 

Interest Principal Activity
2016 2015

MY E.G. Integrated Networks Sdn. Bhd.
(“MINT”)*

Malaysia 40% 40% Provision of software and 
hardware solutions and 
related services.

* - This associate was audited by other firm of chartered accountants.
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6.	 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE  cont’d

The summarised financial information of the associate is as follows:-

MINT
2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

At 30 June
Non-current assets 52,079 52,705
Current assets 881 186
Non-current liabilities (21) (1,382)
Current liabilities (108,122) (93,097)

Net liabilities (55,183) (41,588)

Financial Year Ended 30 June
Revenue - -
Loss during the financial year/Total comprehensive expenses (13,595) (11,622)

Group’s share of losses for the financial year/Total comprehensive expense - -

Reconciliation of Net Liabilities to Carrying Amount
Group’s share of net liabilities* (22,073)      (16,635)
Share of losses recognised 400             400

Share of losses in excess of the interest in the associate not recognised 21,673 16,235

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in this associate - -
				  
* - limited to cost of investment in the associate.
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7.	 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

At 
1.7.2015 Additions

Acquisition 
of A 

Subsidiary 
(Note 

35.1(a)) Disposal
Written 

off
Depreciation 

Charges
At 

30.6.2016

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

The Group

Net Book Value

IT Terminals - 567 675 (13) (2) (202) 1,025

Motor vehicles 1,610 1,873 106 - - (704) 2,885

Office and communication equipment 49,081 12,460 53 - - (10,866) 50,728

Office furniture and renovation 5,135 2,431 27 - - (1,013) 6,580

Computers 7,327 5,305 75 - (1) (2,744) 9,962

Software 879 563 12 - - (340) 1,114

Capital work-in-progress 46,102 132,405 - - - - 178,507

110,134 155,604 948 (13) (3) (15,869) 250,801

								      

At 
1.7.2014 Additions Reclassification

Net effect of 
acquisition/

disposal of 
subsidiary Disposal

Written 
off

Depreciation 
Charges

At 
30.6.2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

The Group

Net Book Value

Motor vehicles 881 1,359 - 15 - - (645) 1,610

Office and 
communication 
equipment 65,423 8,714 (15,000) 2 (13) - (10,045) 49,081

Office furniture and 
renovation 4,263 1,685 -  2 - - (815) 5,135

Computers 5,385 3,840 - (4)     - (2) (1,892) 7,327

Software 592 498 - 12 - (1) (222) 879

Capital work-in-
progress - 31,102 15,000 - - - - 46,102

76,544 47,198 - 27 (13) (3) (13,619) 110,134

 



Annual Report 2016 97

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the financial year ended 30 June 2016

cont’d

7.	 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT  cont’d

At Cost
Accumulated 
Depreciation

Net Book 
Value

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

The Group

2016

IT Terminals 2,016 (991) 1,025
Motor vehicles 5,968 (3,083) 2,885
Office and communication equipment 94,095 (43,367) 50,728
Office furniture and renovation 11,874 (5,294) 6,580
Computers 19,429 (9,467) 9,962
Software 2,004 (890) 1,114
Capital work-in-progress 178,507 - 178,507

313,893 63,092 250,801

2015

Motor vehicles 4,261 (2,651) 1,610
Office and communication equipment 81,562 (32,481) 49,081
Office furniture and renovation 9,293 (4,158) 5,135
Computers 13,864 (6,537) 7,327
Software 1,425 (546) 879
Capital work-in-progress 46,102 - 46,102

156,507 (46,373) 110,134
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7.	 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT  cont’d
		

At 
1.7.2015 Additions Disposal

Depreciation 
Charges

At 
30.6.2016

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

The Company

Net Book Value

Motor vehicles # 5 (#) (1) 4
Office and communication 

equipment 3,377 1,101 - (1,184) 3,294
Office furniture and renovation 2,808 1,979 - (610) 4,177
Computers 2,919 1,536 - (1,081) 3,374
Software 516 338 - (159) 695
Capital work-in-progress 46,102 132,405 - - 178,507

55,722 137,364 (#) (3,035) 190,051

# - represents an amount less than RM1,000.
					   

At 
1.7.2014 Additions Reclassification Disposal

Written 
off

Depreciation 
Charges

At 
30.6.2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

The Company

Net Book Value

Motor vehicles 37 - - - - (37) #

Office and communication 
equipment 19,458 503 (15,000) (13) (#) (1,571) 3,377

Office furniture and 
renovation 2,368 929 - - (#) (489) 2,808

Computers 1,810 1,960 - - (2) (849) 2,919

Software 101 478 - - (1) (62) 516

Capital work-in-progress - 31,102 15,000 - - - 46,102

23,774 34,972 - (13) (3) (3,008) 55,722

							     
# - represents an amount less than RM1,000.
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7.	 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT  cont’d

At
 Cost

Accumulated 
Depreciation

Net Book 
Value

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

The Company

2016

Motor vehicles 540 (536) 4
Office and communication equipment 15,060 (11,766) 3,294
Office furniture and renovation 7,392 (3,215) 4,177
Computers 7,642 (4,268) 3,374
Software 1,003 (308) 695
Capital work-in-progress 178,507 - 178,507

210,144 (20,093) 190,051

2015

Motor vehicles 540 (540) #

Office and communication equipment 13,959 (10,582) 3,377
Office furniture and renovation 5,413 (2,605) 2,808
Computers 6,106 (3,187) 2,919
Software 665 (149) 516
Capital work-in-progress 46,102 - 46,102

72,785 (17,063) 55,722

	 # - represents an amount less than RM1,000.

	 At the end of the reporting period, the net book value of the assets acquired under hire purchase and finance 
lease terms were as follows:-

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Motor vehicles 2,700 1,469 - -
Office and communication equipment 12,292 13,450 - -
Renovation - 574 - -

14,992 15,493 - -
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7.	 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT  cont’d

	 At the end of the reporting period, the net book value of the following assets have been pledged to licensed 
banks as security for banking facilities granted to the Group:-

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Capital work-in-progress 132,405 - 132,405 -

8.	 OTHER INVESTMENTS

The Group
2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Unquoted shares in Malaysia:- 9,593 8,303

Represented by:-
At fair value 9,593 8,303
				  

	 Investments in unquoted shares of the Group are designated as available-for-sale financial assets and are stated 
at fair value. 

	 The other investments stated at fair value are analysed into level 3 fair value measurement.

	 The level 3 fair value of the investments have been determined using discounted cash flow approach performed 
by management based on the following significant unobservable inputs:-

	 Investment engaged in online fashion boutique business

Unobservable Inputs

Relationship of 
Unobservable Inputs to 
Fair Value

Sensitivity Analysis 
(Assume All Other 
Variables Held Constant)

(aa) Revenue growth rates 
of 38% (2015 - 23%)

Based on existing sale 
contracts and taking into 
account management’s 
experience and 
knowledge of market 
conditions of the specific 
industries. 

The higher the revenue 
growth rate, the higher 
the fair value.

A 1% higher/lower in 
revenue growth rate 
would has resulted in an 
increase/decrease in the 
fair value by RM416,000.
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8.	 OTHER INVESTMENTS  cont’d

	 Investment engaged in online fashion boutique business  cont’d

Unobservable Inputs

Relationship of 
Unobservable Inputs to 
Fair Value

Sensitivity Analysis 
(Assume All Other 
Variables Held Constant)

(bb) Pre-tax operating 
profit margins of 11% 
(2015 - 35%)

Taking into account 
management’s 
experience and 
knowledge of market 
conditions of the specific 
industries. 

The higher the pre-tax 
operating margins, the 
higher the fair value.

A 1% higher/lower 
in pre-tax operating 
profit margin would has 
resulted in an increase/
decrease in the fair 
value by RM1,887,000.

(cc) Discount rate of 8% 
(2015 - 8%)

Determined using a 
Capital Asset Pricing 
Model.

The higher the discount 
rate, the lower the fair 
value.

A 1% higher/lower in 
discount rate would has 
resulted in a decrease/
increase in the fair value 
by RM615,000.

	 Investment engaged in waterless car spa business

Unobservable Inputs

Relationship of 
Unobservable Inputs to 
Fair Value

Sensitivity Analysis 
(Assume All Other 
Variables Held Constant)

(aa) Revenue growth rates 
of 30% (2015 - 30%)

Based on existing sale 
contracts and taking into 
account management’s 
experience and 
knowledge of market 
conditions of the specific 
industries. 

The higher the revenue 
growth rate, the higher 
the fair value.

A 1% higher/lower in 
revenue growth rate 
would has resulted in an 
increase/decrease in the 
fair value by RM3,000.

(bb) Pre-tax operating 
profit margins of 51% 
(2015 - 52%)

Taking into account 
management’s 
experience and 
knowledge of market 
conditions of the specific 
industries. 

The higher the pre-tax 
operating margins, the 
higher the fair value.

A 1% higher/lower 
in pre-tax operating 
profit margin would has 
resulted in an increase/
decrease in the fair 
value by RM19,000.

(cc) Discount rate of 8% 
(2015 - 8%)

Determined using a 
Capital Asset Pricing 
Model.

The higher the discount 
rate, the lower the fair 
value.

A 1% higher/lower in 
discount rate would has 
resulted in a decrease/
increase in the fair value 
by RM30,000.
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8.	 OTHER INVESTMENTS  cont’d

	 Investment engaged in providing computer and mobile software service and include related information 
technology services

Unobservable Inputs

Relationship of 
Unobservable Inputs to 
Fair Value

Sensitivity Analysis 
(Assume All Other 
Variables Held Constant)

(aa) Revenue growth rates 
of 5% (2015 - 5% to 
10%)

Based on existing sale 
contracts and taking into 
account management’s 
experience and 
knowledge of market 
conditions of the specific 
industries. 

The higher the revenue 
growth rate, the higher 
the fair value.

A 1% higher/lower in 
revenue growth rate 
would has resulted in an 
increase/decrease in the 
fair value by RM31,000.

(bb) Pre-tax operating 
profit margins of 31% 
(2015 - 28 to 34%)

Taking into account 
management’s 
experience and 
knowledge of market 
conditions of the specific 
industries. 

The higher the pre-tax 
operating margins, the 
higher the fair value.

A 1% higher/lower 
in pre-tax operating 
profit margin would has 
resulted in an increase/
decrease in the fair 
value by RM47,000.

(cc) Discount rate of 8% 
(2015 - 8%)

Determined using a 
Capital Asset Pricing 
Model.

The higher the discount 
rate, the lower the fair 
value.

A 1% higher/lower in 
discount rate would has 
resulted in a decrease/
increase in the fair value 
by RM43,000.

	 Management believes that no reasonable change in the above key assumptions would cause the carrying 
amount of other investments to exceed its recoverable amounts.

	 In the previous financial year, the Group carried out a review of the recoverable amount of some of its other 
investments because of their deteriorating financial performance. A total impairment loss of RM857,000 was 
recognised in “Other expenses” line item of the statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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9.	 DEVELOPMENT COSTS

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

At cost:-
At 1 July 20,623 19,995 10,267 10,267
Addition during the financial year - 628 - -

At 30 June 20,623 20,623 10,267 10,267

Accumulated amortisation:-
At 1 July (11,668) (10,027) (4,895) (4,003)
Amortisation during the financial year (1,836) (1,641) (1,100) (892)

At 30 June (13,504) (11,668) (5,995) (4,895)

7,119 8,955 4,272 5,372
								      

	 Development costs were incurred for the software development of the Electronic Government Services project 
and other related services.

	 Included in the previous year’s development costs was an amount of RM257,000 in respect of staff costs 
incurred.

10.	 GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION

The Group
2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

At 1 July 12,016 12,016
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 35.1(a)) 5,784 -

At 30 June 17,800 12,016
				  

	 Goodwill on consolidation is stated at cost and arose from the acquisition of the subsidiaries.
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10.	 GOODWILL ON CONSOLIDATION  cont’d

	 The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each cash-generating unit are as follows:-

The Group
2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Software solutions and other insurance-related services 2,594 2,594
E-business activities 9,422 9,422
Provision of credit card terminal, hardware, solutions and other related services 5,784 -

17,800 12,016
				  

	 The Group has assessed the recoverable amount of goodwill allocated and determined that no impairment is 
required. The recoverable amounts of cash-generating units are determined using the value in use approach, 
and this is derived from the present value of the future cash flows from the operating segments computed 
based on the projections of financial budgets approved by management covering a period of 5 years. The key 
assumptions used in the determination of the recoverable amounts value-in-use are as follows:-

Gross Margin Growth Rate Discount Rate
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015

Software solutions and 
other insurance-related 
services 59% 66% 5% 5% 8.2% 9.6%

E-business activities 40% - 58% 74% - 81% 6% 3% - 5% 8.2% 9.6%
Provision of credit card 

terminal, hardware, 
solutions and other 
related services 30% - 36% - 18% - 30% - 8.2% -

(a)	 Budgeted gross margin Average gross margins achieved in the year immediately before the budgeted 
year.

(b)	 Growth rate The growth rates used are based on the expected projection of the software 
solutions and other insurance-related services, e-business and provision of 
credit card terminal, hardware, solutions and other related activities. There is 
no growth rate in perpetuity to arrive at terminal value.

(c)	 Discount rate (pre-tax) Reflect specific risk relating to the relevant cash generating unit.
		

	 The values assigned to the key assumptions represent management’s assessment of future trends in the cash-
generating units and are based on both external sources and internal historical data.

	 The director believes that there is no reasonable possible change in the above key assumptions applied that 
is likely to materially cause the respective cash generating unit carrying amount of the goodwill to exceed its 
recoverable amounts.
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11.	 DEFERRED TAX ASSET

	 The deferred tax asset is in respect of the unrealised gains arising from the sales between the Group and an 
associate.

 
12.	 HIRE PURCHASE RECEIVABLES

The Group
2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Minimum hire purchase collections:
- not later than 1 year 94 -
- later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 388 -
- later than 5 years 235 -

717 -
Less: Unearned finance income (141) -

Present value of hire purchase receivables 576 -

Non-current
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 302 -
Later than 5 years 216 -

518 -

Current
Not later than 1 year 58 -

576 -
			 

13.	 INVENTORIES

The Group
2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Used motor vehicles 465 -
Finished goods 2,560 -

3,025 -

Recognised in profit or loss:-
Inventories recognised as cost of sales 4,731 -
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14.	 TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Trade receivables 101,649 72,878 25,546 10,568
Allowance for impairment losses (58) (313) - -

101,591 72,565 25,546 10,568
Accrued income 90 - - -

101,681 72,565 25,546 10,568

Allowance for impairment losses:-
At 1 July (313) (1) - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries (70) - - -
Addition during the financial year (58) (313) - -
Reversal during the financial year 70 1 - -
Written off during the financial year 313 - - -

At 30 June (58) (313) - -
								      

	 The Group’s normal trade credit terms range from cash terms to 180 (2015 - cash term to 180) days. Other 
credit terms are assessed and approved on a case-by-case basis.

15.	 OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Other receivables 21,942 7,675 5,397 3,968
Deposits 2,835 1,764 1,967 1,545
Prepayments 21,152 22,100 9,472 15,961

45,929 31,539 16,836 21,474
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15.	 OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS  cont’d

	 Included in the other receivables, deposits and prepayments are the following items:-

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Advance payments for:-
Insurance premium to a designated insurance 

agent 13,054 - - -
Purchase of office building - 15,535 - 15,535
Purchase of equipment 10,481 4,800 - -
Performance bond placed with gateway provider 6,777 5,780 4,366 3,514
Performance bond placed with government 

agency 99 - - -
Renovation work 8,166 - 7,999 -
								      

16.	 AMOUNT OWING BY SUBSIDIARIES

	 The amount owing by subsidiaries is non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest-free and receivable on demand. 
The amount owing is to be settled in cash.

17.	 AMOUNT OWING BY AN ASSOCIATE

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Amount owing by:
- trade 60,830 58,286 38,130 35,586
- non-trade 16,253 12,934 16,253 12,934

77,083 71,220 54,383 48,520
								      

	 The trade balance relates to the development work for the online tax monitoring project (“the Project”) and is 
repayable upon the commencement of the said project. On 3 December 2014, the Company received a revised 
letter of award under the service tax regime to develop the Project. Nevertheless, the Goods and Services 
Tax (“GST”) was implemented on 1 April 2015 and the service tax regime was replaced by the GST regime 
whereby the Project has been varied. Accordingly, the Project is currently being reviewed to cater for certain 
requirements and enhancements following the implementation of GST. A technical committee together with 
a steering committee have been established by the relevant authorities for this purpose. A trial run based on 
proof of concept has been proposed and is currently awaiting approval from relevant authorities.
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17.	 AMOUNT OWING BY AN ASSOCIATE  cont’d

	 Based on the current state of affairs and other available information on the Project, the directors are confident 
that the Project will be completed and implemented in the near future. Accordingly, the directors are of the 
opinion that the amount owing by the associate will be recovered in full.

	 The non-trade amount owing is unsecured, interest-free and is to be settled in cash.

18.	 FIXED DEPOSITS WITH LICENSED BANKS

(a)	 The fixed deposits with licensed banks of the Group and the Company at the end of the reporting period 
bore a weighted average effective interest rate of 3.17% (2015 - 2.95%) per annum. The fixed deposits 
have maturity periods ranging from 1 to 12 (2015 - 1 to 12) months. 

(b)	 Included in the fixed deposits with licensed banks of the Group and the Company at the end of the 
reporting period were amounts of RM9,013,000 and RM7,007,000 (2015 - RM8,568,000 and RM7,007,000) 
respectively which have been pledged to licensed banks as security for banking facilities granted to the 
Group and the Company. 

(c)	 At the end of the reporting period, the fixed deposits of the Group and the Company amounting to 
RM66,000 and RM33,000 (2015 - RM66,000 and RM33,000) respectively were held in trust by a director, 
respectively.

19.	 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

	 Included in the cash and bank balances is the following:-

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Short-term cash investments 137,846 75,652 74,797 35,255
								      

	 The short-term cash investments at the end of the reporting period bore effective interest rates ranging from 
2.75% to 4.76% (2015 - 2.80% to 3.59%) per annum. The short-term cash investments have a maturity period of 
1 to 30 (2015 - 30) days.

	 At the end of the reporting period, the bank balance of the Group and the Company amounting to RM18,000 
(2015 - RM31,000) was held in trust by a director.
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20.	 SHARE CAPITAL

	 The movements in the authorised and paid-up share capital of the Company are as follows:-

The Group/The Company
 2016  2015 

Number
Of Shares

Share
Capital

Number
Of Shares

Share
Capital

’000 RM’000 ’000 RM’000

Ordinary Shares of RM0.10 Each:-

Authorised
At  1 July 5,000,000 500,000 1,000,000 100,000
Creation of new shares - - 4,000,000 400,000

At 30 June 5,000,000 500,000 5,000,000 500,000

Issued and Fully Paid-Up
At  1 July 1,202,102 120,210 601,051 60,105
Bonus issue 1,202,102 120,210 601,051 60,105

At 30 June 2,404,204 240,420 1,202,102 120,210
							     

	 The holders of ordinary shares (except treasury shares) are entitled to receive dividends as and when declared 
by the Company, and are entitled to one vote per ordinary share at meetings of the Company.

	 The Company had on 7 January 2016, increased its issued and paid-up share capital from RM120,210,200 to 
RM240,420,400 by way of bonus issue of 1,202,102,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.10 each credited as fully 
paid-up on the basis of 1 bonus share for every 1 existing ordinary share held. The new shares issued rank pari 
passu in all respects with the existing shares of the Company.

21.	 TREASURY SHARES

The Group/The Company
 2016  2015 

Number
Of Shares

Treasury
Share

Number
Of Shares

Treasury
Shares

’000 RM’000 ’000 RM’000

At 1 July 2,760 6,783 11,237 10,237
Buy back 1,573 4,041 2,761 6,786
Sold (4,332) (10,822) (11,238) (10,240)

At 30 June 1 2 2,760 6,783
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21.	 TREASURY SHARES  cont’d
						    
	 During the financial year, the Company has purchased 1,573,000 of its issued ordinary shares from the open 

market at an average price of RM2.57 per share. The total consideration paid for the purchase was RM4,041,000 
including transaction costs. The ordinary shares purchased are held as treasury shares in accordance with 
Section 67A of the Companies Act 1965.

	 During the financial year, the Company resold 4,332,000 of its treasury shares to the open market at price of 
RM3.79 per share. The total consideration received for the resale was RM16,366,000 net of transaction costs.

	 Of the total 2,404,204,000 issued and fully paid-up ordinary shares at the end of the reporting period, 1,000 
ordinary shares are held as treasury shares by the Company. None of the treasury shares were cancelled during 
the financial year.

22.	 RESERVES

22.1	 Fair Value Reserves

	 The fair value reserve represents the cumulative fair value changes (net of tax, where applicable) of available-
for-sale financial assets until they are disposed of or impaired.

22.2	 Other Reserve
 

	 Other reserve represents cumulative gain on disposal of treasury shares. The other reserve is not distributable 
by way of dividends and may be utilised in the manner set out in Section 60(3) of the Companies Act 1965.

 
23.	 LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Hire purchase and finance lease payables (Note 24) 5,445 4,756 - -
Term loans (Note 25) 78,155 1,821 77,200 -

83,600 6,577 77,200 -
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24.	 HIRE PURCHASE AND FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES (SECURED)

The Group
2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Minimum hire purchase and finance lease payments:
- not later than 1 year 3,933 4,221
- later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 5,792 5,059
- later than 5 years 86 42

9,811 9,322
Less: Future finance charges (850) (734)

Present value of hire purchase and finance lease payables 8,961 8,588

Non-current portion (Note 23):
- later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 5,359 4,715

- later than 5 years 86 41

5,445 4,756

Current portion (Note 30):
- not later than 1 year 3,516 3,832

8,961 8,588
			 

	 The hire purchase and finance lease payables of the Group are secured by the Group’s motor vehicles, office and 
communication equipment under hire purchase and finance lease.

	 The hire purchase and finance lease of the Group at the end of the reporting period bore an effective interest rate 
of 5.81% (2015 - 7.82%) per annum. The interest rates are fixed at the inception of hire purchase and finance lease 
arrangements.
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25.	 TERM LOANS (SECURED)

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Non-current portion (Note 23):
- later than 1 year and not later than 2 years 13,086 950 12,144 -
- later than 2 years and not later than 5 years 36,445 871 36,432 -
- later than 5 years 28,624 - 28,624 -

78,155 1,821 77,200 -

Current portion (Note 30):
- not later than 1 year 10,150 2,007 9,108 1,057

88,305 3,828 86,308 1,057
								      

	 Details of the term loans are as follows:-

Number of Monthly
Instalments Monthly Instalment

Date of 
Commencement

of Repayment
RM’000

Term loan 1 108 509 October 2016
Term loan 2 108 503 October 2016
Term loan 3 48 79 July 2014
Term loan 4 60 4 December 2012
Term loan 5 60 4 October 2013

	 The term loans bore a weighted average effective floating interest rate of 4.86% (2015 - 7.64%) per annum at the 
end of the reporting and are secured by:-

(i)	 a pledge of certain fixed deposits of the Group and the Company; 
(ii)	 a joint and serveral guarantee of certain directors of the subsidiaries;
(iii)	 a specific charge over certain office buildings and communication equipment of the Group and the Company; 

and
(iv)	 a corporate guarantee of the Company.
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26.	 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES
	

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

At 1 July 937 878 878 878
Recognised in profit or loss (Note 33) 144 59 - #

At 30 June 1,081 937 878 878
								      
# - represent an amount less than RM1,000.

	 The deferred tax liabilities are attributable to the following:-
		

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Accelerated capital allowances 522 378 319 319
Development costs 559 559 559 559

1,081 937 878 878

	 The Group has not recognised the deferred tax liabilities of the following items as the directors are of the opinion 
that the deferred tax liabilities will not crystalise in the foreseeable future as the business operations of which the 
deferred tax liabilities arose are operated by a subsidiary of which MSC status has been granted.

The Group
2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Accelerated capital allowances 10,210 9,145
Development costs 1,381 2,091
Others 914 -

12,505 11,236
				  

27.	 TRADE PAYABLES

	 The normal trade credit terms granted to the Group and the Company range from cash terms to 90 (2015 - cash 
term to 90) days.
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28.	 OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
		

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Other payables 10,697 6,405 5,157 3,143
Accruals 10,287 20,257 3,215 710
Deposits 1,062 200 - -

22,046 26,862 8,372 3,853
					   

	 Included in the other payables is an amount of RM465,000 (2015 - Nil) in respect of the upfront payments received 
from customers for the rental of devices and maintenance services.

29.	 DEFERRED REVENUE

	 Deferred revenue represents the unrealised gains arising from the sales between the Group and an associate.

30.	 SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Hire purchase and finance  lease payables (Note 24) 3,516 3,832 - -
Term loans (Note 25) 10,150 2,007 9,108 1,057
Revolving credit (unsecured) 10,000 - 10,000 -

23,666 5,839 19,108 1,057

	 The revolving credit of the Group and the Company at the end of the reporting period bore a floating interest rate 
of 5.60% (2015 - Nil) per annum.

31.	 REVENUE

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Concession Based Services 79,436 58,132 6,835 6,318
Commercial Based Services and Products 

(Concession and Non-Concession Related):
- sales of goods 8,465 - - -
- services rendered 193,827 83,386 5,156 4,955

Dividend income - - 204,000 120,250

281,728 141,518 215,991 131,523
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32.	 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/
(crediting):-

Amortisation of development costs 1,836 1,641 1,100 892
Audit fee:

- current financial year 165    118 44 49
- underprovision in the previous financial year 11 # 5 -

Bad debts written off 40 - - -
Directors’ fee 716 766 716 766
Depreciation of equipment 15,869 13,619 3,035 3,008
Equipment written off 3 3 - 3
Impairment loss:

- trade receivables 58 313 - -
- other investments - 857 - -

Interest expense on financial liabilities not at fair 
value through profit or loss:
- hire purchase and finance lease 475 596 - -
- term loans 2,999 485 2,795 225

Loss/(Gain) on foreign exchange:
- realised 90 - - -
- unrealised (175) - - -

Preliminary expenses 6 4 - -
Rental expense:

- equipment 197 56 - -
- parking 99 68 67 53
- premises 4,175 3,517 1,281 1,335
- others 11 - - -

Staff costs:
- salaries and other benefits 53,938 27,455 9,212 8,734
- defined contribution plan 6,080 2,932 969 901

Dividend income from a subsidiary - - (204,000) (120,250)
Gain on disposal of equipment (222) - (1) -
Gain on disposal of other investment - (245) - -
Interest income from financial assets not at fair value 

through profit or loss derived from fixed deposits 
with licensed banks and cash and bank balances (1,993) (1,722) (1,203) (1,260)

Rental income (901) (22) - -
Reversal of impairment loss on trade receivables (70) (1) - -
Waiver of debts (60) - - -

# - represent an amount less than RM1,000.
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33.	 INCOME TAX EXPENSE
				  

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Current tax:
- for the current financial year 656 205 169 79
- overprovision in the previous financial year (93) (98) (80) (6)

563 107 89 73

Deferred tax (Note 26):

- for the current financial year 144 (15) - #

- underprovision in the previous financial year - 74 - -

144 59 - #

707 166 89 73
								      

#  -  represents an amount less than RM1,000.

	 During the financial year, the statutory tax rate was reduced from 25% to 24%

	 On 10 August 2016, a subsidiary with MSC Malaysia status, was granted an extension of the Pioneer Status incentive 
under the Promotion of Investments Act, 1986. The subsidiary will enjoy full exemption from income tax on its 
statutory income from pioneer activities for five (5) years, from 27 April 2016 to 26 April 2021. 
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33.	 INCOME TAX EXPENSE  cont’d

	 A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to the profit before taxation at the statutory tax rate to income 
tax expense at the effective tax rate of the Group and the Company is as follows:-

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Profit before taxation 143,226 68,213 171,121 104,999

Tax at the applicable statutory tax rate of 24% 
(2015 - 25%) 34,374 17,053 41,069 26,250

Tax effects of:-
Non-taxable income (71) (61) (49,031) (30,063)
Tax exempted income (43,067) (22,179) (196) (186)
Non-deductible expenses 3,543 2,758 2,887 1,695
Deferred tax assets not recognised for the 

financial year 6,021 2,581 5,440 2,355
Differential in tax rate - 38 - 28
(Over)/Underprovision in the previous financial 

year:
- current taxation (93) (98) (80) (6)
- deferred taxation - 74 - -

707 166 89 73

	 No deferred tax assets are recognised in respect of the following items:-

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Unutilised tax losses 32,579 11,315 30,141 10,941
Unabsorbed capital allowances 15,610 9,321 15,203 9,300
Accelerated capital allowances (18,675) (16,522) (18,645) (16,522)
Other provisions (212) 100 (212) 100

29,302 4,214 26,487 3,819
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34.	 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Group
2016 2015

Profit attributable to owners of the Company (RM’000) 142,872 68,145

‘000 ‘000

Weighted average number of shares at 1 July: 
 - issued ordinary shares 1,202,102 1,202,102
 - treasury shares held (2,760) (11,237)

1,199,342 1,190,865
Effect of treasury share buy-back and resale 949 5,308
Effect of bonus issue 1,202,102 1,202,102

Weighted average number of shares at 30 June 2,402,393 2,398,275

Basic earnings per share (Sen) 5.9 2.8
				  

	 The diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings per share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary 
shares outstanding at the end of the reporting period.

 
35.	 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

35.1	 Acquisition of Subsidiaries

(a)	 On 28 August 2015, MYEGC acquired 55% equity interests in CardBiz. The acquisition of the subsidiaries 
is to enable the Group to expand its business into providing marketing and trading of all kinds of 
manufactured technology products and credit card terminals and other related activities.
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35.	 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS  cont’d

35.1	 Acquisition of Subsidiaries  cont’d

(a)	 The following summarises the major classes of consideration transferred, and the recognised amounts 
of assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition:-

The Group
2016

RM’000

Equipment 948
Inventories 465
Trade receivables 1,409
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 219
Current tax assets 45
Cash and bank balances 1,548
Trade payables (1,424)
Other payables and accruals (2,114)
Hire purchase and finance lease payables  (33)
Term loans (245)

Net identifiable assets and liabilities 818
Less: Non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable 

assets (368)
Add: Goodwill on acquisition (Note 10) 5,784

Total purchase consideration, to be settled by cash 6,234
Less: Cash and bank balances of subsidiaries acquired (1,548)

Net cash outflow from the acquisition of subsidiaries 4,686
	

	 The goodwill is attributable mainly to the control premium paid. In addition, the purchase consideration 
also included benefits derived from the expected revenue growth of the subsidiaries, its future market 
development as well as a customer list. These benefits are not recognised separately from goodwill 
because they do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets. The goodwill is not 
deductible for tax purposes. 

	 The subsidiaries have contributed revenue of RM7,848,000 and profit after taxation of RM792,000 to 
the Group since the date of acquisition.

	 If the acquisition was effective at the beginning of the current financial year, the Group’s revenue and 
profit after taxation for the current financial year would have been RM283,356,000 and RM142,501,000 
respectively.
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35.	 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS  cont’d

35.1	 Acquisition of Subsidiaries  cont’d

(b)	 In the previous financial year, MYEGC, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company subscribed for 
650,000 ordinary shares of RM1.00 each in the issued and paid up share capital of My EG Marketing 
Sdn. Bhd. (“MYEG Marketing”), representing a 50.66% equity interest in MYEG Marketing. Following 
the shares subscription, MYEG Marketing became a 50.66% owned subsidiary of the Group. MYEG 
Marketing was incorporated as a private limited company in Malaysia pursuant to the Companies Act 
1965 on 6 September 2012. MYEG Marketing is principally involved in marketing of all kinds of credit 
cards, consultancy services, commission agents, event organiser and other related activities.

	 The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of MYEG Marketing as at the date of acquisition were:-

Pre-
acquisition 

carrying 
amounts

Subscription 
of shares

Recognised 
values on 

acquisition
RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Equipment 232 - 232
Trade receivables 6 - 6
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 37 - 37
Amount owing by a related party 7 - 7
Cash and bank balances 5 650 655
Other payables and accruals (92) - (92)
Hire purchase and finance lease payables (168) - (168)

Net identifiable assets and liabilities 27 650 677

Less: Non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of 
the acquiree’s net identifiable assets (334)

Goodwill on acquisition 307

Total purchase consideration 650

	 MYEGC paid a total cash consideration of RM650,000 to subscribe for a 50.66% equity interest in MYEG 
Marketing.

	 The effect of the acquisition on cash flows is as follows:-

RM’000

Purchase consideration settled in cash and cash equivalents  650
Less: Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary acquired    (655)

Net cash inflow on acquisition of a subsidiary     (5)

	 The goodwill is attributable to the subscription of shares in MYEG Marketing which is part of a strategic 
move by the Group to leverage on MYEG Marketing’s expertise in marketing to the masses as the Group 
intends to launch more commercial products and services with its recently launched co-branded credit 
card with a financial institution.
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35.	 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS  cont’d

35.2	 Acquisition of Non-Controlling Interests

	 On 19 April 2016, MYEGAD acquired an additional 30% equity interests in Ipidato DC for RM3,000 in cash, 
increasing its ownership from 70% to 100%. The carrying amount of Ipidato DC’s net liabilities in the Group’s 
financial statements on the date of the acquisition was RM3,000. The Group recognised an increase in non-
controlling interests of RM1,000 and a decrease in retained profits of RM4,000.

	 The following summarises the effect of changes in the equity interests in Ipidato DC that is attributable to the 
owners of the Company:-

The Group
2016

RM’000

Equity interest at 1 July 2015 (9)
Effect of increase in the Company’s ownership interest (4)
Share of post acquisition profits/other comprehensive income (4)

Equity interest at 30 June 2016 (17)

 
36.	 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 

36.1	 Disposal of a Subsidiary That Do Not Result in a Loss of Control

	 On 11 August 2015, MYEGC disposed of 25% equity interests in CarX for RM250 in cash, decreasing its 
ownership from 80% to 55%. The carrying amount of CarX’s net liabilities in the Group’s financial statements 
on the date of the acquisition was RM628,000. The Group recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests 
of RM157,000 and an increase in retained profits of RM157,000.

	 The following summarises the effect of changes in the equity interests in CarX that is attributable to the 
owners of the Company:-

The Group
2016

RM’000

Equity interest at 1 July 2015 (81)
Effect of increase in the Company’s ownership interest 157
Share of post acquisition profits/other comprehensive income (1,051)

Equity interest at 30 June 2016 (975)
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36.	 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES  cont’d

36.2	 Disposal of A Subsidiary That Result in a Loss of Control

	 In the previous financial year, MYEGC, the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company disposed of its entire 
50.66% equity interest in the issued and paid-up share capital of MYEG Marketing. MYEGC entered into Sale 
and Purchase Agreement with Mr. Ng How Hon and Mr. Chai Hann Lin for a total consideration of RM572,000. 
Upon completion of the disposal, MYEG Marketing ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company. The disposal of 
MYEG Marketing was completed on 27 March 2015.

	 The details of the disposal of the subsidiary were as follows:-

Group
RM’000

Equipment 205
Trade receivables (57)
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 97
Amount owing by a related party 7
Cash and bank balances 572
Other payables and accruals (151)
Hire purchase and finance lease payables  (150)

Fair value of net assets disposed of 523
Less: Non-controlling interest (258)

265
Disposal proceeds (572)
Attributable goodwill 307

(Gain)/Loss on disposal to the Group -

Cash inflow arising from disposal of:-
Cash consideration 572
Cash and cash equivalents of subsidiary disposed  (572)

Net cash inflow on disposal of  a subsidiary -
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37.	 DIVIDENDS

The Company
2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

In respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2014:
- a final tax-exempt dividend of 2.00 sen per ordinary share - 11,970

In respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2015:
- a first interim tax-exempt dividend of 0.50 sen per ordinary share - 6,010
- a final tax-exempt dividend of 1.40 sen per ordinary share 16,829 -

In respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2016:
- a first interim single tier dividend of 0.50 sen per ordinary share 12,021 -

28,850 17,980

	 At the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, a final dividend of 1.30 sen per ordinary share in respect of the 
current financial year will be proposed for approval by the shareholders. The financial statements for the current 
financial year do not reflect this proposed dividend. This dividend will be accounted for as an appropriation of 
retained profits in the period when it is approved by the shareholders.

38.	 PURCHASE OF PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Cost of property and equipment purchased 155,604 47,198 137,364 34,972
Amount financed through hire purchase and 

finance lease (4,530) (2,534) - -

Cash disbursed for purchase of property and 
equipment 151,074 44,664 137,364 34,972
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39.	 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

	 For the purpose of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:-

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Fixed deposits with licensed banks 9,216 8,662 7,069 7,069
Cash and bank balances 200,499 123,387 99,405 48,402

209,715 132,049 106,474 55,471
Less: Deposits pledged to licensed banks  

(Note 18 (b)) (9,013) (8,568) (7,007) (7,007)

200,702 123,481 99,467 48,464
								      

40.	 KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION 

	 The key management personnel of the Group and of the Company include executive directors and non-executive 
directors of the Company and certain members of senior management of the Group and of the Company.

(a)	 The key management personnel compensation during the financial year is as follows:-

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Directors

Directors of the Company

Executive Directors

Short-term employee benefits:
- fees 488 538 488 538

Non-executive Directors

Short-term employee benefits:
- fees 228 228 228 228

716 766 716 766
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40.	 KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION  cont’d

(a)	 The key management personnel compensation during the financial year is as follows:-  cont’d

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Directors  cont’d

Directors of the Subsidiaries

Executive Director

Short-term employee benefits:
- salaries, bonuses and other benefits 441 - - -

Non-executive Directors

Short-term employee benefits:
- other benefits 265 - - -

706 - - -

Other Key Management Personnel

Short-term employee benefits 571 526 571 526

(b)	 The number of the Company’s directors with total remuneration falling in bands of RM50,000 are as follows:-

The Company
2016 2015
Number of Directors

Executive Directors

RM100,001 – RM150,000 1 -
RM150,001 – RM200,000 2 3

Non-executive Directors

RM50,001 – RM100,000 3 3

6 6
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41.	 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a)	 Identities of Related Parties 

	 Parties are considered to be related to the Group if the Group or the Company has the ability, directly or 
indirectly, to control or jointly control the party or exercise significant influence over the party in making 
financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the Group or the Company and the party are subject 
to common control.  

	 In addition to the information detailed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group has related party 
relationships with its directors, associate, key management personnel and entities within the same group of 
companies.

(b)	 Related Party Transactions and Balances

	 Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group and the Company also carried 
out the following transactions with the related parties during the financial year:-

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Sales to:
A subsidiary
MECSB - - 960 960
An associate
MINT 2,400 2,400 2,400 2,400

Dividend income from subsidiaries
EGSB - - 203,500 120,250
GVSB - - 500 -

Professional fees charged by a related 
party:

Embunaz Ventures Sdn. Bhd.* 250 250 250 250
									       

*	 a company in which Dato’ Dr Norraesah Binti Haji Mohamad has a substantial financial interest.

	 The significant outstanding balances of the related parties together, if any, together with their terms are 
disclosed in the respective notes to the financial statements.
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42.	 OPERATING SEGMENTS

	 Segmental reporting is not presented as the Group is principally engaged in the development and implementation 
of the Electronic Government Services project and the provision of other related services for the Electronic 
Government Services project, which is substantially within a single business segment and operates wholly in 
Malaysia.

	 Major customers

	 There is no revenue from any major customers, with revenue equal to or more than 10% of Group revenue in this 
financial year (2015 - Nil).

43.	 COMMITMENTS 

(a)	 Capital Commitments

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Purchase of property and equipment:
- contracted but not provided for 24,962 139,812 24,962 139,812
- authorised but not contracted for 12,015 7,200 4,094 -

(b)	 Operating Lease Commitments

	 The future minimum lease payments under the non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:-

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Not later than 1 year 2,584 4,554 2,386 4,266
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1,305 2,878 1,166 2,749

3,889 7,432 3,552 7,015
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44.	 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

	 No provisions are recognised on the following matters as it is not probable that a future sacrifice of economic 
benefits will be required or the amount is not capable of reliable measurement:-

The Company
2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Unsecured

 Corporate guarantees given to licensed banks for credit facilities granted to:
- subsidiaries 8,356 2,475
- an associate 4,000 4,000

12,356 6,475
							     

45.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

	 The Group’s activities are exposed to a variety of market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and 
equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall financial risk management policy focuses on 
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial 
performance. 

45.1	 Financial Risk Management Policies

	 The Group’s policies in respect of the major areas of treasury activity are as follows:-

(a)	 Market Risk 

(i)	 Foreign Currency Risk 

	 The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on transactions and balances that are denominated 
in currencies other than the respective functional currencies of entities within the Group. The 
currency giving rise to this risk is primarily United States Dollar (“USD”). Foreign currency risk is 
monitored closely on an ongoing basis to ensure that the net exposure is at an acceptable level. 
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45.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  cont’d

45.1	 Financial Risk Management Policies  cont’d

(a)	 Market Risk  cont’d

(i)	 Foreign Currency Risk  cont’d

	 The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk (a currency which is other than the functional 
currency of the entities within the Group) based on the carrying amounts of the financial 
instruments at the end of the reporting period is summarised below:-

	 Foreign Currency Exposure

United States 
Dollar

Ringgit 
Malaysia Total

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

The Group

2016

Financial Assets
Other investments - 9,593 9,593
Hire purchase receivables - 576 576
Trade receivables * - 101,591 101,591
Other receivables and deposits - 24,777 24,777
Amount owing by an associate - 77,083 77,083
Fixed deposits with licensed banks - 9,216 9,216
Cash and bank balances 30 200,469 200,499

30 423,305 423,335

Financial Liabilities
Trade payables 2,646 171,264 173,910
Other payables and accruals - 22,046 22,046
Hire purchase payables - 8,961 8,961
Term loans - 88,305 88,305
Revolving credit - 10,000 10,000

2,646 300,576 303,222

Net financial (liabilities)/assets (2,616) 122,729 120,113
Less: Net financial assets denominated in the 

respective entities’ functional currencies - (122,729) (122,729)

Currency Exposure (2,616) - (2,616)

	 * - The trade receivables exclude accrued income.
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45.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  cont’d

45.1	 Financial Risk Management Policies  cont’d

(a)	 Market Risk  cont’d

(i)	 Foreign Currency Risk  cont’d

	 The Group does not have any transactions or balances denominated in foreign currencies in the 
previous financial year and hence, was not exposed to foreign currency risk.

	 Foreign Currency Risk Sensitivity Analysis 

	 Any reasonably possible change in the foreign currency exchange rates at the end of the reporting 
period against the respective functional currencies of the entities within the Group does not have 
material impact on the profit after taxation and other comprehensive income of the Group and of 
the Company and hence, no sensitivity analysis is presented.

(ii)	 Interest Rate Risk  

	 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk 
arises mainly from interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities. The Group’s policy is to obtain 
the most favourable interest rates available and by maintaining a balanced portfolio mix of fixed 
and floating rate borrowings.  

	 The Group’s fixed rate receivables, fixed deposits with licensed banks and borrowings are carried 
at amortised cost. Therefore, they are not subject to interest rate risk as defined under MFRS 7 
since neither the carrying amounts nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in 
market interest rates.

	 The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk based on the carrying amounts of the financial 
instruments at the end of the reporting period is disclosed in Notes 25 and 30 to the financial 
statements.

	 Interest Rate Risk Sensitivity Analysis

	 Any reasonably possible change in the interest rates of floating rate term loans at the end of 
the reporting period does not have material impact on the profit after taxation and other 
comprehensive income of the Group and of the Company and hence, no sensitivity analysis is 
presented.

(iii)	 Equity Price Risk  

	 The Group does not have any quoted investment and hence, is not exposed to any equity price 
risk. 
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45.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  cont’d

45.1	 Financial Risk Management Policies  cont’d

(b)	 Credit Risk  

	 The Group’s exposure to credit risk, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, arises mainly from trade 
and other receivables. The Group manages its exposure to credit risk by the application of credit 
approvals, credit limits and monitoring procedures on an ongoing basis. For other financial assets 
(including cash and bank balances and short-term cash investments), the Group minimises credit risk 
by dealing exclusively with high credit rating counterparties.

	 The Group uses ageing analysis to monitor the credit quality of the trade receivables. Any receivables 
having significant balances past due or more than 180 days, which are deemed to have higher credit 
risk, are monitored individually.

	 The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in 
respect of the trade and other receivables as appropriate. The main components of this allowance 
are a specific loss component that relates to individually significant exposures, and a collective loss 
component established for groups of similar assets in respect of losses that have been incurred but not 
yet identified (where applicable). Impairment is estimated by management based on prior experience 
and the current economic environment.

	 The Company provides financial guarantee to financial institutions for credit facilities granted to certain 
subsidiaries. The Company monitors the results of these subsidiaries regularly and repayments made 
by the subsidiaries.  

(i)	 Credit risk concentration profile

	 The Group’s major concentration of credit risk relates to the amounts owing by three trade 
receivables and an associate which constituted approximately 84% of its trade receivables 
(including hire purchase receivables) at the end of the reporting period.

(ii)	 Exposure to credit risk

	 At the end of the reporting period, the maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the 
carrying amount of each class of financial assets recognised in the statement of financial position 
of the Group and of the Company after deducting any allowance for impairment losses (where 
applicable). 
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45.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  cont’d

45.1	 Financial Risk Management Policies  cont’d

(b)	 Credit Risk  cont’d

(iii)	 Ageing analysis

	 The ageing analysis of the trade receivables (including amount owing by an associate and exclude 
accrued income) is as follows:-

Gross
Amount

Individual
Impairment

Carrying
Value

The Group RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

2016

Not past due 136,507 - 136,507

Past due:
- less than 3 months 7,679 - 7,679
- 3 to 6 months 5,708 (58) 5,650
- over 6 months 13,161 - 13,161

163,055 (58) 162,997

2015

Not past due 111,030 - 111,030

Past due:
- less than 3 months 1,500 - 1,500
- 3 to 6 months 7,126 - 7,126
- over 6 months 11,508 (313) 11,195

131,164 (313) 130,851
			 

	 At the end of the reporting period, trade receivables that are individually impaired were those 
in significant financial difficulties and have defaulted on payments. These receivables are not 
secured by any collateral or credit enhancement.

	 The Group believes that no additional impairment allowance is necessary in respect of trade 
receivables that are past due but not impaired because they are companies with good collection 
track record and no recent history of default.
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45.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  cont’d

45.1	 Financial Risk Management Policies  cont’d

(c)	 Liquidity Risk

	 Liquidity risk arises mainly from general funding and business activities. The Group practises prudent 
risk management by maintaining sufficient cash balances and the availability of funding through certain 
committed credit facilities.

	 Maturity analysis

	 The following table sets out the maturity profile of the financial liabilities at the end of the reporting 
period based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using 
contractual rates, if floating, based on the rates at the end of the reporting period):-

			 
Contractual

Interest
Rate

Carrying
Amount

Contractual
Undiscounted

Cash Flows
Within
1 Year

1 - 5
Years

Over
5

Years
% RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

The Group

2016

Non-derivative 
Financial Liabilities

Hire purchase and 
finance lease 
payables 5.81 8,961 9,811 3,933 5,792 86

Term loans 4.86 88,305 127,246 14,222 59,699 53,325
Revolving credit 5.60 10,000 10,279 10,279 - -
Trade payables - 173,910 173,910 173,910 - -
Other payables and 

accruals - 22,046 22,046 22,046 - -

303,222 343,292 224,390 65,491 53,411
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45.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  cont’d

45.1	 Financial Risk Management Policies  cont’d

(c)	 Liquidity Risk  cont’d
		
	 Maturity analysis  cont’d

	 The following table sets out the maturity profile of the financial liabilities at the end of the reporting 
period based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using 
contractual rates, if floating, based on the rates at the end of the reporting period):-  cont’d

Contractual
Interest

Rate
Carrying
Amount

Contractual
Undiscounted

Cash Flows
Within
1 Year

1 - 5
Years

Over
5

Years
% RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

The Group

2015

Non-derivative 
Financial Liabilities

Hire purchase and 
finance lease 
payables 7.82 8,588 9,322 4,221 5,059 42

Term loans 7.64 3,828 4,210 2,246 1,964 -
Trade payables - 113,725 113,725 113,725 - -
Other payables and 

accruals - 26,862 26,862 26,862 - -

153,003 154,119 147,054 7,023 42
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45.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  cont’d

45.1	 Financial Risk Management Policies  cont’d

(c)	 Liquidity Risk  cont’d
		
	 Maturity analysis  cont’d

	 The following table sets out the maturity profile of the financial liabilities at the end of the reporting 
period based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using 
contractual rates, if floating, based on the rates at the end of the reporting period):-  cont’d

Contractual
Interest

Rate
Carrying
Amount

Contractual
Undiscounted

Cash Flows
Within
1 Year

1 - 5
Years

Over
5

Years
% RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

The Company

2016

Non-derivative 
Financial Liabilities

Term loans 4.79 86,308 125,089 13,058 58,706 53,325
Revolving credit 5.60 10,000 10,279 10,279 - -
Trade payables - 366 366 366 - -
Other payables and 

accruals - 8,372 8,372 8,372 - -

105,046 144,106 32,075 58,706 53,325

2015

Non-derivative 
Financial Liabilities

Term loans 7.10 1,057 1,113 1,113 - -
Trade payables - 392 392   392 - -
Other payables and 

accruals - 3,853 3,853 3,853 - -

5,302 5,358 5,358 - -
						    

45.2	 Capital Risk Management

	 The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities within the Group will be able to maintain an optimal 
capital structure so as to support their businesses and maximise shareholders’ value. To achieve this objective, 
the Group may make adjustments to the capital structure in view of changes in economic conditions, such as 
adjusting the amount of dividend payment, returning of capital to shareholders or issuing new shares.
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45.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  cont’d

45.2	 Capital Risk Management  cont’d

	 The Group manages its capital based on debt-to-equity ratio that complies with debt covenants and regulatory, 
if any. The debt-to-equity ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total equity. The Group includes within net 
debt, loans and borrowings from financial institutions less cash and cash equivalents. Capital includes equity 
attributable to the owners of the parent and non-controlling interest. The debt-to-equity ratio of the Group 
at the end of the reporting period was as follows:- 

The Group
2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000

Hire purchase and finance lease payables 8,961 8,588
Term loans 88,305 3,828
Revolving credit 10,000 -
Trade payables 173,910 113,725
Other payables and accruals 22,046 26,862

303,222 153,003
Less: Fixed deposits with licensed banks (9,216) (8,662)
Less: Cash and bank balances (200,499) (123,387)

Net debt 93,507 20,954

Total equity 400,136 273,893

Debt-to-equity ratio 0.23 0.08
				  

	 There was no change in the Group’s approach to capital management during the financial year.
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cont’d

45.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  cont’d

45.3	 Classification of Financial Instruments

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Financial Assets 

Available-for-sale Financial Asset
Other investments (Note 8) 9,593 8,303 - -

Loan and Receivables Financial Assets 
Hire purchase receivables (Note 12) 576 - - -
Trade receivables* (Note 14) 101,591 72,565 25,546 10,568
Other receivables and deposits (Note 15) 24,777 9,439 7,364 5,513
Amount owing by subsidiaries (Note 16) - - 102,541 50,424
Amount owing by an associate (Note 17) 77,083 71,220 54,383 48,520
Fixed deposits with licensed banks (Note 18) 9,216 8,662 7,069 7,069
Cash and bank balances (Note 19) 200,499 123,387 99,405 48,402

413,742 285,273 296,308 170,496

Financial Liabilities

Other Financial Liabilities
Hire purchase and finance lease payables 

(Note 24) 8,961 8,588 - -
Term loans (Note 25) 88,305 3,828 86,308 1,057
Revolving credit (Note 30) 10,000 - 10,000 -
Trade payables (Note 27) 173,910 113,725 366 392
Other payables and accruals (Note 28) 22,046 26,862 8,372 3,853

303,222 153,003 105,046 5,302

* - The trade receivables exclude accrued income.
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45.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  cont’d

45.4	 Fair Value Information  

	 The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group and of the Company which are 
maturing within the next 12 months approximated their carrying amounts due to the relatively short-term 
maturity of the financial instruments.

	 The following table sets out the fair value profile of financial instruments that are carried at fair value and 
those not carried at fair value at the end of the reporting period:-

Fair Value of Financial 
Instruments Carried at Fair Value  

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
Not Carried at Fair Value Total Fair

Value
Carrying
AmountLevel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

The Group

2016

Financial Assets

Other investments:

- unquoted shares - - 9,593 - - - 9,593 9,593

Hire purchase 
receivables - - - - 578 - 578 576

Financial Liabilities

Hire purchase and 
finance lease payables - - - - 9,068 - 9,068 8,961

Term loans - - - - 88,305 - 88,305 88,305

2015

Financial Asset

Other investments:

- unquoted shares - - 8,303    - -            - 8,303 8,303

Financial Liabilities

Hire purchase and 
finance lease 
payables - - - - 8,421 - 8,421 8,588

Term loans - - -   - 3,828            -  3,828 3,828
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45.	 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS  cont’d

45.4	 Fair Value Information  cont’d

Fair Value of Financial 
Instruments Carried at Fair Value  

Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
Not Carried at Fair Value Total Fair

Value
Carrying
AmountLevel 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

The Company

2016

Financial Liability

Term loans - - - - 86,308 - 86,308 86,308

2015

Financial Liability

Term loans - - - - 1,057 - 1,057 1,057

										        
(a)	 Fair Value of Financial Instruments Carried at Fair Value

	 The level 3 fair value of the other investments is determined using discounted cash flow approach based 
on pre-tax cash flow projections performed by management based on the significant unobservable 
inputs as disclosed in Note 8 to the financial statements.

(b)	 Fair Value of Financial Instruments not Carried at Fair Value

	 The fair values, which are for disclosure purposes, have been determined using the following basis:-

(i)	 The fair values of hire purchase and finance lease payables and term loans are determined by 
discounting the relevant cash flows using current market interest rates for similar instruments at 
the end of the reporting period. The effective interest rates used to discount the estimated cash 
flows are as follows:-

	
The Group The Company

2016 2015 2016 2015
% % % %

Hire purchase receivables 5.72 - - -
Hire purchase and finance lease 

payables 4.83 5.80 - -
Term loans 4.86 7.64 4.79 7.10
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46.	 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR  

(a)	 On 21 May 2015, the Company entered into a conditional Sale and Purchase Agreement to acquire 61,609,301 
ordinary shares of RM0.10 each representing 55% equity interests in CardBiz for a total cash consideration of 
RM6,234,300. The acquisition was completed on 28 August 2015.

(b)	 On 5 August 2015, EGSB acquired 2 ordinary shares of RM1 each representing 100% equity interests in MTSB 
for a total cash consideration of RM2 and subsequently subscribed for 99,998 ordinary shares of RM1 each 
in MTSB for a total cash consideration of RM99,998.

(c)	 On 11 August 2015, the Company disposed of 250 ordinary shares of RM1 each representing 25% equity 
interests in CarX for a total cash consideration of RM250. Following the completion of the disposal, CarX 
became a 55%-owned subsidiary of the Company.

(d)	 On 2 September 2015, the Company mutually agreed with Celcom to extend the Memorandum of 
Understanding (“MOU”) for a further period of one (1) year. Both parties are currently in the exploratory 
stage on areas of collaboration.

	 On 10 May 2016, the MOU was terminated with immediate effect with mutual agreement from both parties 
as the said MOU has transited to a business arrangement, such as the appointment of the Company on 22 
January 2016 as Celcom’s Direct Channel Partner to promote, market and distribute products and services to 
end users. As such, the MOU would therefore no longer subsist.

(e)	 On 4 September 2015, the Company received an appointment letter from Immigration Department of 
Malaysia to undertake the registration of illegal foreign workers in the country (“The Project”). The Project 
will be an extension of the scope of service provided by the Company to the Immigration Department of 
Malaysia.

	 On 11 February 2016, MYEG received a letter of appointment from the Ministry of Home Affairs in relation 
to The Project. The letter appointment dated 11 February 2016 superseded the appointment letter dated 4 
September 2015. 

	 All terms and conditions as stated in the earlier letter will be replaced with the new conditions as stated in 
the letter dated 11 February 2016.

(f)	 On 6 October 2015, the Company received a notice from Malaysia Competition Commission (“MyCC”) which 
proposed to impose a financial penalty of RM307,000 for infringing Section 10 of the Competition Act 2010, 
and an additional penalty of RM15,000 for each day MYEG fails to comply with the remedial actions. The 
proposed decision is not final, the management will review the proposed decisions with the external counsel 
and will submit a written representation and will make an oral representation to MyCC by 18 November 
2015.

	 On 24 June 2016, the Company received a Notice of Decision by MyCC which was served on the Company and 
its wholly-owned subsidiary MECSB, which has determined that the Company had infringed Section 10 (2)(d)
(iii) of the Competition Act, 2010 by abusing its dominant position in harming competition in the downstream 
market in which MECSB is participating as an insurance agent for the online foreign workers permit (“PLKS”) 
renewal applications (“the Decision”).
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46.	 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE FINANCIAL YEAR  cont’d

(f)	 Due to the Decision, MyCC has imposed the following on the Company:-

(i)	 a financial penalty amounting to RM2,272,200;

(ii)	 the Company to cease and desist immediately from imposing different conditions to equivalent 
transactions in the processing of Mandatory Insurances for online PLKS renewal applications;

(iii)	 the Company to provide an efficient gateway for all its competitors in the market for the sale of the 
Mandatory Insurances and allows the other competitors to compete at the same level within sixty (60) 
days from the date of the Decision; and

(iv)	 the Company to provide an undertaking in the form and manner acceptable to MyCC, to be fully 
compliant with the General Insurance Association of Malaysia rules and regulations within sixty (60) 
days from the date of Decision.

	 The Board of Directors will review the Decision with the Company’s legal counsel and intends to file in 
an appeal to MyCC with the Company’s defence.

(g)	 On 28 August 2015, CardBiz acquired the remaining 200,000 ordinary shares of RM1 each representing 40% 
equity interests in BNASB for a total cash consideration of RM133,400 from its non-controlling interests. 
Consequently, BNASB became a wholly-owned subsidiary of CardBiz.

	 Subsequently, CardBiz subscribed for 200,000 ordinary shares of RM1 each in BNASB for a total cash 
consideration of RM200,000.

(h)	 On 7 January 2016, the Company increased its issued and paid-up share capital from RM120,210,000 to 
RM240,420,000 by way of bonus issue of 1,202,102,000 new ordinary shares of RM0.10 each credited as fully 
paid-up on the basis of 1 bonus share for every 1 existing ordinary share held. The new shares issued rank 
pari passu in all respects with the existing shares of the Company.

(i)	 On 3 February 2016, the Company subscribed for 1,499,998 ordinary shares of RM1 each in a wholly-owned 
subsidiary, MYEGAD for a total cash consideration of RM1,499,998.

(j)	 On 19 February 2016, the Company acquired 2 ordinary shares of RM1 each representing 100% equity 
interests in MYEGCDT for a total cash consideration of RM2. Subsequently, the Company further subscribed 
for 2,000,000 ordinary shares of RM1 each in MYEGCDT by capitalising the amount owing by MYEGCDT of 
RM2,000,000.

(k)	 On 20 May 2016, the Company acquired 100% equity interests in Ipidato DC. from a wholly-owned subsidiary, 
MYEGAD, for a total cash consideration of RM10,000. This acquisition did not have any financial impact to the 
Group’s financial results.

(l)	 On 24 May 2016, the Company acquired 2 ordinary shares of RM1 each representing 100% equity interests 
in MYEG Alt for a total cash consideration of RM2.

	 On 16 June 2016, the Company subscribed for 4,999,998 ordinary shares of RM1 each in MYEG Alt for a total 
cash consideration of RM4,999,998.

(m)	 On 31 May 2016, the Company subscribed for 60 ordinary shares of RM1 each representing 60% equity 
interests in Picasso Media for a total cash consideration of RM60.

(n)	 On 30 June 2016, the Company subscribed for 700,000 ordinary shares of RM1 each in MECSB by capitalising 
the amount owing by MECSB of RM700,000.

	
(o)	 On 30 June 2016, the Company subscribed for 999,998 ordinary shares of RM1 each in MYEGC by capitalising 

the amount owing by MYEGC of RM999,998. 
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47.	 SIGNIFICANT EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a)	 On 20 July 2016, MYEGC acquired 2 ordinary shares of RM1 each, representing 100% equity interests in Hurr 
Tv Sdn. Bhd. (“Hurr Tv”) for a total cash consideration of RM2 and subsequently subscribed for an additional 
4 ordinary shares of RM1 each in Hurr Tv for a total cash consideration of RM4. Upon completion of the 
subscription, Hurr Tv became a 60% owned subsidiary of MYEGC.

(b)	 On 20 July 2016, EGSB acquired 55 ordinary shares of RM1 each, representing 55% equity interests in MY 
EG Lodging Sdn. Bhd. (“MY EG Lodging”) for a total cash consideration of RM55. Upon completion of the 
subscription, MY EG Lodging became a 55% owned subsidiary of EGSB.

(c)	 On 16 August 2016, MY EG Lodging entered into 3 Tenancy Agreements with Melaka State Development 
Corporation for the rental of 512 accommodation units to serve as hostels to foreign workers, subject to the 
terms and conditions as stated in the Agreements.

	
(d)	 On 25 August 2016, the Company proposed to implement a bonus issue of up to 1,202,102,000 new ordinary 

shares of RM0.10 each on the basis of 1 bonus share for every 2 existing MYEG’s shares held by MYEG’s 
shareholders.

(e)	 On 15 September 2016, the Company entered into seven (7) Sale and Purchase Agreements with Cheerful 
Effect Sdn. Bhd. and Lee Hong Poh & Lim Wan Lee for the acquisition of 7 storeys of stratified parcels 
designated for office use within a 45 storey corporate office tower identified as Iconic Office (Block N) at 
Empire City @ Damansara for an aggregate cash consideration of RM44,293,852.
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48.	 SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION – DISCLOSURE OF REALISED AND UNREALISED PROFITS/(LOSSES)

	 The breakdown of the retained profits of the Group and the Company at the end of the reporting period into 
realised and unrealised profits/(losses) are presented in accordance with the directive issued by Bursa Malaysia 
Securities Berhad and prepared in accordance with Guidance on Special Matter No. 1, Determination of Realised 
and Unrealised Profits or Losses in the Context of Disclosure Pursuant to Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad Listing 
Requirements, as issued by the Malaysian Institute of Accountants, as follows:- 

The Group The Company
2016 2015 2016 2015

RM’000 RM’000 RM’000 RM’000

Total retained profits of the Company and its 
subsidiaries:

- realised 163,835 128,190 169,917 105,508
- unrealised (196) (227) (878) (878)

163,639 127,963 169,039 104,630
Total share of accumulated losses of an associate:
- realised (400) (400) - -
- unrealised - - - -

163,239 127,563 169,039 104,630
Less: Consolidation adjustments (10,060) (10,786) - -

At 30 June 153,179 116,777 169,039 104,630
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As at 30 June 2016

The Company does not own any properties as at 30 June 2016.
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Authorised Share Capital	 :	 RM500,000,000.00
Issued and Paid-Up Capital	 :	 RM240,032,720 (excluding 3,876,800 treasury shares of RM0.10 each)
Class of Shares	 :	 Ordinary Shares of RM0.10 each
Voting Right	 :	 One Vote per Ordinary Share
Number of Shareholders	 :	 10,095

DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDINGS

Size of Shareholdings
No. of 

Shareholders %(1) No. of Shares %(1)

Less than 100 55 0.54 2,016 0.00
100 to 1,000 1,776 17.59 1,400,861 0.06
1,001 to 10,000 5,409 53.58 26,555,544 1.11
10,001 to 100,000 2,228 22.07 70,963,502 2.96
100,001 – less than 5% of issued shares 624 6.18 1,749,121,281 72.87
5% and above issued shares 3 0.03 552,283,996 23.01

Total 10,095 100.00 2,400,327,200 100.00

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ SHAREHOLDINGS

Names of Substantial Shareholders
	 No. of Shares Held

Direct Interest   %(1) Indirect Interest   %

Wong Thean Soon 175,904,024 7.328 764,604,892(2) 31.854
Dato’ Raja Haji Munir Shah Bin Raja Mustapha 1,439,600 0.060  724,604,892(3) 30.188
Asia Internet Holdings Sdn Bhd 709,036,896 29.539 - -

Notes:
(1)	 Excluding a total of 3,876,800 ordinary shares of RM0.10 each bought-back by the Company and retained as treasury shares

(2)	 Deemed interested by virtue of his substantial shareholdings in Asia Internet Holdings Sdn Bhd, Asia Internet E-Services 
Holdings Sdn Bhd and Radio Port Limited pursuant to Section 6A of the Act

(3)	 Deemed interested by virtue of his substantial shareholdings in Asia Internet Holdings Sdn Bhd and Asia Internet E-Services 
Holdings Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 6A of the Act

Analysis of Shareholdings 
As at 30 September 2016
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DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS

	 No. of Shares Held
Name of Directors Direct Interest    %(1) Indirect Interest %(1)

Dato’ Dr Norraesah Binti Haji Mohamad 17,640,000 0.735 - -
Wong Thean Soon 175,904,024 7.328 764,604,892(2) 31.854
Dato’ Raja Haji Munir Shah Bin Raja Mustapha 1,439,600 0.060 724,604,892(3) 30.188
Tan Sri Dato’ Dr Muhammad Rais Bin Abdul Karim 8,012,000 0.334 4,890,000(4) 0.204 
Datuk Mohd Jimmy Wong Bin Abdullah 2,208,000 0.092 - -
Ng Fook Ai, Victor - - - -
Dato’ Shamsul Anuar Bin Haji Nasarah - - - -

Notes:-
(1)	 Excluding a total of 3,876,800 ordinary shares of RM0.10 each bought-back by the Company and retained as treasury shares

(2)	 Deemed interested by virtue of his substantial shareholdings in Asia Internet Holdings Sdn Bhd, Asia Internet E-Services 
Holdings Sdn Bhd and Radio Port Limited pursuant to Section 6A of the Act

(3)	 Deemed interested by virtue of his substantial shareholdings in Asia Internet Holdings Sdn Bhd and Asia Internet E-Services 
Holdings Sdn Bhd pursuant to Section 6A of the Act

(4)	 Deemed interested by virtue of his wife’s and son’s shareholding pursuant to Section 134 (12)(c) of the Companies Act, 1965

TOP THIRTY (30) SHAREHOLDERS

No. Names No. of Shares %

1. CitiGroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
UBS AG Singapore for Asia Internet Holdings Sdn Bhd

218,551,996 9.105

2. Asia Internet Holdings Sdn Bhd 190,732,000 7.946
3. Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

Pledged Securities Account for Asia Internet Holdings Sdn Bhd (001-Account 2)
143,000,000 5.958

4. Maybank Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Asia Internet Holdings Sdn Bhd (512754515120)

120,000,000 4.999

5. Kumpulan Wang Persaraan (Diperbadankan) 91,568,600 3.815
6. Edisi Firma Sdn Bhd 62,132,660 2.589
7. Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

Employees Provident Fund Board 
54,975,800 2.290

8. RHB Capital Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account For Wong Thean Soon

52,192,000 2.174

9. CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
CIMB Bank for Wong Thean Soon 

50,000,000 2.083

10. HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Exempt an for JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association (U.S.A)

44,651,837 1.860

11. Citigroup Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Exempt an for UBS AG Hong Kong (Foreign)

40,000,000 1.666

12. HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Exempt an for JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association (JPMTSTCOJERAIF)

39,134,900 1.630

Analysis of Shareholdings 
As at 30 September 2016
cont’d
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TOP THIRTY (30) SHAREHOLDERS  cont’d

No. Names No. of Shares %

13. CIMB Group Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
CIMB Bank Berhad (EDP 2)

37,598,100 1.566

14. CIMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
CIMB Bank for Wong Thean Soon (PBCL-0G0372)

30,000,000 1.250

15. HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Exempt an for JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association (JPMELAB AIF APG)

26,878,250 1.120

16. Kenanga Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Asia Internet Holdings Sdn Bhd 

26,400,000 1.100

17. Amanahraya Trustees Berhad
Public Islamic Opportunities Fund

26,212,400 1.092

18. Jason Chan Ling Khee 24,647,196 1.027
19. Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd

Employees Provident Fund Board (Nomura)
21,000,000 0.875

20. Amanahraya Trustees Berhad
Public Islamic Select Treasures Fund

20,855,800 0.869

21. DB (Malaysia) Nominee (Asing) Sdn Bhd
BNYM SA/NV for Rochdale Emerging Markets Portfolio

19,814,600 0.826

22. Citigroup Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Exempt an for Citibank New York (Norges Bank 14)

19,026,600 0.793

23. Citigroup Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Macquarie Bank Limited (DBU A/C)

18,232,300 0.760

24. AllianceGroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Pledged Securities Account for Wong Thean Soon (8080812)

18,000,000 0.750

25. Norraesah Binti Mohamad 17,640,000 0.735
26. DB (Malaysia) Nominee (Asing) Sdn Bhd

Deutsche Bank AG London
17,018,216 0.709

27. HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
BBH and Co Boston for Vanguard Emerging Markets Stock Index Fund

16,812,100 0.700

28. Citigroup Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
Employees Provident Fund Board (CIMB PRIN)

16,464,100 0.686

29. AMSEC Nominees (Tempatan) Sdn Bhd
MTrustee Berhad for CIMB Islamic Dali Equity Growth Fund (UT-CIMB-DALI)

16,140,000 0.672

30. HSBC Nominees (Asing) Sdn Bhd
Exempt an for BNP Paribas Securities Services (CLT USD UCITS)

15,986,800 0.666

Analysis of Shareholdings 
As at 30 September 2016

cont’d
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Sixteenth Annual General Meeting of MY E.G. SERVICES BERHAD will be held at 
Hibiscus Auditorium, LG 1, Sime Darby Convention Centre, 1A Jalan Bukit Kiara 1, 60000 Kuala Lumpur on Friday, 9 
December 2016 at 9.30 a.m. for the following purposes:

AGENDA

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To lay the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2016 
together with the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

Please refer to Note A

2. To approve a final single-tier dividend of 1.3 sen per ordinary share in respect of the 
financial year ended 30 June 2016. 

Ordinary Resolution 1

3.

4.

To approve the payment of Directors’ fees for the financial year ended 30 June 
2016.

To re-elect the following Directors retiring pursuant to Article 69 of the Articles of 
Association of the Company:

Ordinary Resolution 2

4.1 Dato’ Raja Haji Munir Shah Bin Raja Mustapha Ordinary Resolution 3
4.2 Mr Ng Fook Ai, Victor Ordinary Resolution 4

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Ordinary Resolution:

“That pursuant to Section 129(6) of the Companies Act 1965, Tan Sri Dato’ Dr 
Muhammad Rais Bin Abdul Karim be and is hereby re-appointed as Director of 
the Company to continue in office until the next Annual General Meeting of the 
Company.”

Ordinary Resolution 5

6. To re-appoint Messrs Crowe Horwath as Auditors of the Company and to authorise 
the Directors to fix their remuneration.

Ordinary Resolution 6

AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolutions:

7. APPROVAL FOR DATUK MOHD JIMMY WONG BIN ABDULLAH TO CONTINUE IN 
OFFICE AS INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Ordinary Resolution 7

“THAT approval be and is hereby given to Datuk Mohd Jimmy Wong Bin Abdullah 
who has served as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company for a 
cumulative term of more than nine years, to continue to act as an Independent 
Non-Executive Director of the Company until the conclusion of the next Annual 
General Meeting in accordance with Malaysian Code on Corporate Governance 
2012.”

Notice of the Sixteenth Annual General Meeting
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Notice of the Sixteenth Annual General Meeting
cont’d

8. AUTHORITY TO ALLOT AND ISSUE SHARES BY DIRECTORS PURSUANT TO SECTION 
132D OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1965

Ordinary Resolution 8

“THAT pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965, the Directors be and 
are hereby empowered to allot and issue shares in the Company, at any time, at 
such price, upon such terms and conditions, for such purpose and to such person 
or persons whomsoever as the Directors may in their absolute discretion deem fit 
provided that the aggregate number of shares to be issued does not exceed ten 
per centum (10%) of the issued share capital of the Company (excluding treasury 
shares) at the time of issue and THAT the Directors be and are hereby also 
empowered to obtain the approval for the listing of and quotation for the additional 
shares so issued on the Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad and THAT such authority 
shall continue to be in force until the conclusion of the next Annual General 
Meeting of the Company.”

9. PROPOSED RENEWAL OF AUTHORITY FOR PURCHASE OF OWN SHARES BY THE 
COMPANY

“THAT, subject to the Companies Act, 1965 (“the Act”), rules, regulations and orders 
made pursuant to the Act, provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association, the 
requirements of Bursa Malaysia Securities Berhad (“Bursa Securities”) and any other 
relevant authorities, the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised 
to make purchases of ordinary shares of RM0.10 each comprised in the Company’s 
issued and paid-up share capital, such purchases to be made through the Bursa 
Securities subject further to the following:

(i)	 the aggregate number of shares which may be purchased and/or held by the 
Company shall be up to ten per-centum (10%) of the issued and paid-up share 
capital of the Company (“Shares”) for the time being;

(ii)	 the maximum funds to be allocated by the Company for the purpose of 
purchasing the Shares shall not exceed the total retained profits of the 
Company. As at 30 June 2016, the audited retained profits of the Company 
were approximately RM169.04 million;

(iii)	 the authority conferred by this resolution will commence immediately upon 
passing of this ordinary resolution and will continue to be in force until:

	 (a)	 the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the 
Company following the general meeting at which this resolution was 
passed at which time it shall lapse unless by ordinary resolution passed 
at the meeting, the authority is renewed, either unconditionally or 
subject to conditions;

	 (b)	 the expiration of the period within which the next AGM after that date is 
required by law to be held; or

	 (c)	 revoked or varied by ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders in 
general meeting,

Ordinary Resolution 9
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Notice of the Sixteenth Annual General Meeting
cont’d

	 whichever occurs first, but not so as to prejudice the completion of 
purchase(s) by the Company before the aforesaid expiry date and, made in any 
event, in accordance with the provisions of the guidelines issued by the Bursa 
Securities and any prevailing laws, rules, regulations, orders, guidelines and 
requirements issued by any relevant authority; and

(iv)	 upon completion of the purchase(s) of the Shares by the Company, the 
Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to deal with the 
shares in the following manner:

	 (a)	 cancel the Shares so purchased; or
	 (b)	 retain the Shares so purchased as treasury shares; or
	 (c)	 retain part of the Shares so purchased as treasury shares and cancel the 

remainder; or
	 (d)	 distribute the treasury shares as dividends to shareholders and/or resell 

on the Bursa Securities and/or cancel all or part of them; or

	 in any other manner as prescribed by the Act, rules, regulations and orders 
made pursuant to the Act and the requirements of the Bursa Securities and 
any other relevant authority for the time being in force;

AND THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to take all 
such steps as are necessary or expedient to implement or to effect the purchase(s) 
of the Shares with full power to assent to any condition, modification, variation 
and/or amendments as may be imposed by the relevant authorities and to take all 
such step as they may deem necessary or expedient in order to implement, finalise 
and give full effect in relation thereto.” 

10. PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY

“THAT the proposed amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company 
as set out in Appendix A of the Annual Report be and is hereby approved AND 
THAT the Directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised to do all things 
and acts necessary to effect the amendments to the Articles of Association of the 
Company.”

Special Resolution

11. To transact any other business that may be transacted at the AGM of which due 
notice shall have been given in accordance with the Companies Act, 1965 and 
Articles of Association of the Company.

By Order of the Board

TAI YIT CHAN (MAICSA 7009143)
TAN AI NING (MAICSA 7015852)
Company Secretaries

Selangor Darul Ehsan
31 October 2016
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NOTES:

(A)	 This Agenda item is meant for discussion only as the provision of Section 169(1) of the Companies Act, 1965 does not require 
a formal approval of the shareholders and hence, is not put forward for voting.

1.	 A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy or proxies to attend and vote in his 
stead. If the proxy is not a member of the Company, he need not be an advocate, an approved company auditor or a person 
approved by the Registrar of Companies and there shall be no restriction as to qualification of the proxy.

2.	 A member shall be entitled to appoint up to two (2) proxies or attorneys or authorised representatives to vote at the same 
meeting. Where a member appoints more than one (1) proxy, the appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the 
proportion of his shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.

3.	 Where a Member of the Company is an Exempt Authorised Nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple 
beneficial owners in one securities account (“Omnibus Account”), there shall be no limit to the number of proxies which the 
Exempt Authorised Nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.

4.	 If no name is inserted in the space provided for the name of your proxy, the Chairman of the meeting will act as your proxy.

5.	 An instrument appointing a proxy must be in writing under the hand of the appointer or his attorney duly authorised and in 
the case of corporation shall be either under its common seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised. 

6.	 The instrument appointing a proxy or the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially 
certified copy of that power of authority shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at Lot 6.05, Level 6, 
KPMG Tower, 8 First Avenue, Bandar Utama, 47800 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan, not less than forty-eight (48) hours 
before the time for holding the meeting or any adjourned meeting at which the person named in the instrument proposes to 
vote and in default, the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

7.	 In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear on the Record of Depositors on 1 December 2016 
(General Meeting Record of Depositors) shall be eligible to attend the meeting or appoint proxy(ies) to attend and/or vote on 
his/her behalf.

8.	 Explanatory Notes on Special Business

	 Ordinary Resolution 7
	 Approval for Datuk Mohd Jimmy Wong Bin Abdullah to continue in office as Independent Non-Executive Director

	 The Board has via the Nomination Committee conducted an annual performance evaluation and assessment of Datuk Mohd 
Jimmy Wong Bin Abdullah, who has served as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company for a cumulative term 
of more than nine years, and recommended him to continue to act as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company 
based on the following justifications:-

	
	 a.	 he fulfilled the criteria under the definition of Independent Director as stated in the Listing Requirements, and therefore 

was able to bring independent and objective judgment to the Board;
	
	 b.	 his experience enable him to provide the Board with a diverse set of experience, expertise, skills and competence;

	 c. 	 he has been with the Company for long and therefore understand the Company’s business operations which enable 
him to participate actively and contribute during deliberations or discussions at Audit and Risk Management 
Committee and Board meetings;

	 d.	 he has contributed sufficient time and efforts and attended all the Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee, 
Audit and Risk Management Committee and Board meetings for informed and balanced decision making; and 

	 e.	 he has exercised due care during his tenure as Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company and carried out his 
professional duties in the interest of the Company and shareholders.

Notice of the Sixteenth Annual General Meeting
cont’d
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Notice of the Sixteenth Annual General Meeting
cont’d

	 Ordinary Resolution 8
	 Authority to Allot and Issue Shares by Directors pursuant to Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965

	 The proposed Ordinary Resolution 8, if passed, will give flexibility to the Directors of the Company to issue shares and allot up 
to a maximum of ten per centum (10%) of the issued share capital of the Company (excluding treasury shares) at the time of 
such allotment and issuance of shares and for such purposes as they consider would be in the best interest of the Company 
without having to convene separate general meetings. This authority, unless revoked or varied at a general meeting, will 
expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

	 The rationale for this resolution is to eliminate the need to convene general meeting(s) from time to time to seek 
shareholders’ approval as and when the Company issues new shares for future business opportunities for the purpose of 
funding investment project(s), working capital and/or acquisitions and thereby reducing administrative time and cost 
associated with the convening of such meeting(s). No shares had been issued and allotted by the Company since obtaining 
the said authority from its shareholders at the last Annual General Meeting held on 18 December 2015 and hence no 
proceeds were raised therefrom.

	 Ordinary Resolution 9
	 Proposed Renewal of Authority for Purchase of Own Shares by the Company

	 The proposed Ordinary Resolution 9 if passed, will empower the Company to purchase and/or hold up to ten per centum 
(10%) of the issued and paid-up share of the Company. This authority unless revoked or varied by the Company at a General 
Meeting will expire at the next Annual General Meeting.

	 Please refer to the Share Buy-Back Statement dated 31 October 2016 for further information.

	 Special Resolution
	 Proposed Amendments to the Articles of Association of the Company

	 The Special Resolution, if passed will allow the Chairman the prerogative to promote orderly conduct of general meetings 
and render the Articles of Association of the Company to be in line with the Main Market Listing Requirements of Bursa 
Malaysia Securities Berhad.

Personal data privacy: 

By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to attend, speak and vote at the AGM 
and/or any adjournment thereof, a member of the Company (i) consents to the collection, use and disclosure of 
the member’s personal data by the Company (or its agents) for the purpose of the processing and administration 
by the Company (or its agents) of proxies and representatives appointed for the AGM (including any adjournment 
thereof) and the preparation and compilation of the attendance lists, minutes and other documents relating to the 
AGM (including any adjournment thereof), and in order for the Company (or its agents) to comply with any applicable 
laws, listing rules, regulations and/or guidelines (collectively, the “Purposes”), (ii) warrants that where the member 
discloses the personal data of the member’s proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) to the Company (or its agents), 
the member has obtained the prior consent of such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the collection, use and 
disclosure by the Company (or its agents) of the personal data of such proxy(ies) and/or representative(s) for the 
Purposes, and (iii) agrees that the member will indemnify the Company in respect of any penalties, liabilities, claims, 
demands, losses and damages as a result of the member’s breach of warranty.



Annual Report 2016 153

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY

The Articles of Association of the Company are proposed to be amended in the following manner:-

Article No. Existing Articles Amended Articles

To amend 
Article 55

At any general meeting a resolution put to the 
vote of the meeting shall be decided on the 
show of hands unless a poll is (before or on the 
declaration of the result on the show of hands) 
demanded:-

(a)	 by the chairman;

(b)	 by any Member or Members present in 
person or by proxy and representing not 
less than one-tenth (1/10) of the total 
sum paid up on all the shares conferring 
that right; or

(c)	 by a Member or Members holding shares 
in the Company conferring a right to vote 
at the meeting being shares on which an 
aggregate sum has been paid up which is 
equal to not less than one-tenth (1/10) 
of the total sum paid up on all the shares 
conferring that right.

Unless a poll is so demanded, a declaration 
by the chairman that a resolution has been 
carried, or carried unanimously, or by a 
particular majority, or lost and an entry to 
that effect in the book containing the minutes 
of the proceedings of the Company shall 
be conclusive evidence of the fact without 
proof of the number or proportion of the 
votes recorded in favour of or against the 
resolution. The demand for a poll may, before 
the poll is taken, be withdrawn and a demand 
so withdrawn shall not be taken to have 
invalidated the results of a show of hands 
declared before the demand was made.

Subject to the Listing Requirements, any 
resolution set out in the notice of any general 
meeting, or in any notice of resolution which 
may properly be moved and is intended to be 
moved at any general meeting shall be voted 
by poll. Subject to the Act, a poll may be 
demanded:

(a)	 by the chairman;

(b)	 by any Member or Members present in 
person or by proxy and representing not 
less than one-tenth (1/10) of the total 
sum paid up on all the shares conferring 
that right; or

(c)	 by a Member or Members holding shares 
in the Company conferring a right to vote 
at the meeting being shares on which an 
aggregate sum has been paid up which is 
equal to not less than one-tenth (1/10) 
of the total sum paid up on all the shares 
conferring that right.

Unless a poll is so demanded, a declaration 
by the chairman that a resolution has been 
carried, or carried unanimously, or by a 
particular majority, or lost and an entry to 
that effect in the book containing the minutes 
of the proceedings of the Company shall 
be conclusive evidence of the fact without 
proof of the number or proportion of the 
votes recorded in favour of or against the 
resolution. The demand for a poll may, before 
the poll is taken, be withdrawn and a demand 
so withdrawn shall not be taken to have 
invalidated the results of a show of hands 
declared before the demand was made.

Appendix A
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Article No. Existing Articles Amended Articles

To amend 
Article 56

If a poll is duly demanded it shall be taken in 
such manner and either at once or after an 
interval or adjournment or otherwise as the 
Chairman directs, and the result of the poll 
shall be the resolution of the meetings at 
which the poll was demanded. No poll shall 
be demanded on the election of the chairman 
or on a question of adjournment. A poll 
demanded on any other question or matter 
shall be taken either forthwith or at such time 
and place as the Chairman directs. If a poll is 
demanded before the declaration of the results 
of a show of hands and the demand is duly 
withdrawn, the meeting shall continue as if the 
demand had not been made.

A poll shall be taken in such manner as the 
Chairman of the meeting directs and at 
least one (1) scrutineer must be appointed 
to validate the votes cast at the general 
meeting. The appointed scrutineer must not 
be an officer of the Company or its related 
corporation, and must be independent of the 
person undertaking the polling process. The 
Chairman of the meeting may fix a time and 
place for declaring the result of the poll. The 
result of the poll shall be deemed to be the 
resolution of the meeting at which the poll was 
demanded. 

The poll may be conducted manually using 
voting slips or electronically using various 
forms of electronic devices. Such votes 
shall be counted by the poll administrator, 
and verified by the scrutineer, as may be 
appointed by the Chairman of the meeting for 
the purpose of determining the outcome of 
the resolution(s) to be decided on poll. 

Any poll duly demanded on the election of 
a Chairman of a meeting or on a question 
of adjournment shall be taken forthwith at 
the meeting and without adjournment. A 
poll demanded on any other question shall 
be taken either forthwith or at such time and 
place as the Chairman of the meeting directs. 
If a poll is demanded before the declaration of 
the result of a show of hands and the demand 
is duly withdrawn, the meeting shall continue 
as if the demand had not been made.

To add 
Article 57A

(New provision) Without prejudice to any other power 
which the Chairman may have under the 
provisions of these Articles or at common 
law and subject to the Act and the Listing 
Requirements, the Chairman may take 
such action as he thinks fit to promote the 
orderly conduct of the business of all general 
meetings as specified in the notice of such 
meetings and the Chairman’s decision on 
matters of procedure or arising incidentally 
from the business of such meetings shall 
be final, as shall be his determination as to 
whether any matter is of such a nature.

Appendix A
cont’d



PROXY FORM

I/We,  NRIC/Company No. 
	 (Full name in block letters)

of 
(Full Address)

being a member/members of MY E.G. SERVICES BERHAD, hereby appoint 

 of 
	 (Full name in block letters)	 (Full Address)

 or failing him/her,  
	 (Full name in block letters)

of 
(Full Address)

or failing him/her, the Chairman of the meeting as my/our proxy to vote for me/us on my/our behalf at the Sixteenth Annual General 
Meeting of MY E.G. Services Berhad to be held at Hibiscus Auditorium, LG 1, Sime Darby Convention Centre, 1A Jalan Bukit Kiara 1, 
60000 Kuala Lumpur on Friday, 9 December 2016 at 9.30 a.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

Mark either box if you wish to direct the proxy how to vote. If no mark is made the proxy may vote on the resolution or abstain from 
voting as the proxy thinks fit. If you appoint two proxies and wish them to vote differently this should be specified.

My/our proxy/proxies is/are to vote as indicated below:

NO. RESOLUTION FOR AGAINST
Ordinary Business

Ordinary Resolution 1 To approve the Final Single-Tier Dividend    
Ordinary Resolution 2 To approve the payment of Directors’ fees for the financial year ended 30 June 

2016
Ordinary Resolution 3 To re-elect Dato’ Raja Haji Munir Shah Bin Raja Mustapha
Ordinary Resolution 4 To re-elect Mr Ng Fook Ai, Victor
Ordinary Resolution 5 To re-appoint Tan Sri Dato’ Dr Muhammad Rais Bin Abdul Karim
Ordinary Resolution 6 To re-appoint Messrs Crowe Horwath as Auditors of the Company

Special Business
Ordinary Resolution 7 To approve Datuk Mohd Jimmy Wong Bin Abdullah to continue in office as 

Independent Non-Executive Director
Ordinary Resolution 8 To approve the Authority to Directors to allot and issue shares pursuant to 

Section 132D of the Companies Act, 1965
Ordinary Resolution 9 To approve the Proposed Renewal of Authority for Purchase of Own Shares by 

the Company
Special Resolution To approve the Proposed Amendments to the Articles of Association of the 

Company

Dated this 		   day of 			    2016

					            								               	
           Signature/Common Seal of Shareholder	

Contact No.:				           								      
       	            
NOTES:
1.	 A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy or proxies to attend and vote in his stead. If the proxy is not a member of the Company, he 

need not be an advocate, an approved company auditor or a person approved by the Registrar of Companies and there shall be no restriction as to qualification of the proxy.
2.	 A member shall be entitled to appoint up to two (2) proxies or attorneys or authorised representatives to vote at the same meeting. Where a member appoints more than one 

(1) proxy, the appointment shall be invalid unless he specifies the proportion of his shareholdings to be represented by each proxy.
3.	 Where a member of the Company is an Exempt Authorised Nominee which holds ordinary shares in the Company for multiple beneficial owners in one securities account 

(“omnibus account”), there shall be no limit to the number of proxies which the Exempt Authorised Nominee may appoint in respect of each omnibus account it holds.
4.	 If no name is inserted in the space provided for the name of your proxy, the Chairman of the meeting will act as your proxy.
5.	 An instrument appointing a proxy must be in writing under the hand of the appointer or his attorney duly authorised and in the case of corporation shall be either under its 

common seal or under the hand of an officer or attorney duly authorised. 
6.	 The instrument appointing a proxy or the power of attorney or other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that power of authority shall be 

deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at Lot 6.05, Level 6, KPMG Tower, 8 First Avenue, Bandar Utama, 47800 Petaling Jaya, Selangor Darul Ehsan, not less than 
forty-eight (48) hours before the time for holding the meeting or any adjourned meeting at which the person named in the instrument proposes to vote, and in default, the 
instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid.

7.	 In respect of deposited securities, only members whose names appear on the Record of Depositors on 1 December 2016 (General Meeting Record of Depositors) shall be 
eligible to attend the meeting or appoint proxy(ies) to attend and/or vote on his behalf.

Personal Data Privacy:
By submitting an instrument appointing a proxy(ies) and/or representative(s), the member accepts and agrees to the personal data privacy terms set out in the Notice of Annual 
General Meeting dated 31 October 2016.

MY E.G. SERVICES BERHAD
(505639-K)

(Incorporated in Malaysia)

NUMBER OF SHARES HELD

CDS ACCOUNT NO. OF
AUTHORISED NOMINEE

For appointment of two proxies, percentage of
shareholdings to be represented by the proxies:

No. of Shares Percentage
Proxy 1 %
Proxy 2 %
Total 100%



Affix
stamp

1st fold here

Fold this flap for sealing

Then fold here

The Company Secretary
MY E.G. SERVICES BERHAD

(505639-K)
Lot 6.05, Level 6, KPMG Tower,
8 First Avenue, Bandar Utama,

47800 Petaling Jaya,
Selangor Darul Ehsan.
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